
A Stronger
Future Together

Straightforward fi nancial solutions with a human touch

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t a
nd

 A
cc

ou
nt

s 
20

15

Society Information
Foresters Friendly Society (the Society) is the trading name of The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited.
The Society is registered and incorporated under the Friendly Societies Act 1992, registered number 511F.
The Society’s registered offi ce is 29 – 33 Shirley Road, Southampton, SO15 3EW. 

t: 023 80 229655 e: mail@forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk
w: www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk
The Society is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Aurhority (PRA) and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential Regulation 
Authority (PRA) registration number 110029. The Society is a member of the Association of Financial mutuals (AFM).

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Cover_AW.indd   1 20/04/2016   09:30



Our Directors and Advisers

Non-Executive Directors
Mike Wilkinson – Chairman
Kathryn Vagneur – Deputy Chairman
Penny O’Nions – Senior Independent Director
Trevor Batten

John Instance

Graham Setterfi eld

Erik Vynckier

David Watkins

Executive Director
Paul Osborn – CEO

Company Secretary and Registered Offi ce
Lisa Russell

Foresters House

29-33 Shirley Road

Southampton

SO15 3EW

Actuarial Function Holder and With-Profi ts Actuary
Trevor Fannin, Willis Towers Watson

Independent Auditor
Deloitte LLP

Other Key Service Providers

Investments
Quilter Cheviot (equities)

Aston Rose (property)

Bankers
Royal Bank of Scotland

HSBC

Legal
Hogan Lovells International

Bond Dickinson

Paris Smith LLP

Internal Audit
Mazars LLP

We aim to 
differentiate 

ourselves by putting 
our members at 

the heart of 
everything we do

Financial statements

ABI Association of British Insurers

AFH Actuarial Function Holder

AGM Annual General Meeting

AOF Scheme The Ancient Order of Foresters 1978 Retirement & 
Death Benefi t Scheme

AP Annual Premiums

API Annualised Premium Income

APE Annual Premium Equivalent (representing annualised 
new regular premiums plus 10% of single premiums)

CIF Court Investment Fund

CRF Court Reserve Fund

DAC Deferred Acquisition Costs

DBF Discretionary Benefi t Fund

ERM Enterprise Risk Management

FCA Financial Conduct Authority

FFA Fund for Future Appropriations

FGSPP The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Group 
Stakeholder Pension Plan

Foresters The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited

FRS Financial Reporting Standard

FSA Financial Services Authority

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

GAO Guaranteed Annuity Option

GBF Group Business Fund

GCF Group Capital Fund

GRF General Reserve Fund

HCR High Chief Ranger

HMRC HM Revenue and Customs

IBNR Incurred But Not Reported

ICA Individual Capital Assessment

IFA Independent Financial Adviser

KPI Key Performance Indicator

KRI Key Risk Indicator

Leek Leek Assurance Collecting Society Limited (transferred 
to the Society on 31 December 2005)

LTB Long Term Business

LTBP Long Term Business Provision

LTICR Long Term Insurance Capital Requirement

MVR Market Value Reduction

NED Non-Executive Director

NISA New Individual Savings Account

NP Non-profi t

OIF Order Insurance Fund

ORSA Own Risk and Solvency Assessment

PEF Pure Endowment Fund

POIS Post Offi ce Insurance Society

PPFM Principles and Practices of Financial Management

PRA Prudential Regulation Authority

RCR Resilience Capital Requirement

RCSA Risk and Control Assessment

RDR Retail Distribution Review

S&D Sick & Death Fund

SID Senior Independent Director

Society The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited

STRGL Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

TCF Treating Customers Fairly

Tunstall Tunstall Assurance Friendly Society Limited (transferred 
to the Society on 31 December 2003)

Tunstall scheme The Tunstall and District Assurance Collecting Society 
Staff Superannuation Fund Scheme

WP With-profi ts

WPA With-profi ts Actuary

Abbreviations

87

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Cover_AW.indd   2 20/04/2016   09:30



Contents

We aim to 
differentiate 

ourselves by putting 
our members at 

the heart of 
everything we do

Chairman’s Report   4

CEO’s Report  6

Strategic Report  8

Board of Directors 20

Directors’ Report 22

Committee Reports 24

Governance Arrangements  28

Directors’ Remuneration Report  31

Corporate Governance

Financial Statements

Overview 

Independent Auditor’s Report 33

Income and Expenditure Accounts 39

Balance Sheets 42

Notes to the Accounts 46

Abbreviations 87

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   3 20/04/2016   09:28



It is with great pleasure and some 
sadness that I present to you my last 
statement as Chairman of the Society. As 
many of you will know, I will step down 
as Chairman and a Director of Foresters 
after our High Court in June 2016. 

Whilst I have thoroughly enjoyed the 
challenges, it is time to introduce new skills and experience to 
lead the Society through the next phase of its development. It 
is very satisfying to be leaving the Society after much progress 
has been made.

2015 Performance Highlights
At the end of 2015, the Society holds funds under management of £264m (2014: 
£264m). As a Board, we are satisfi ed that the Society continues to be 
fi nancially strong.

Our strategic objectives remain unchanged. We continue to challenge ourselves 
to achieve higher policy sales through increased awareness and understanding 
of what the Society has to offer its members. This strategy is being pursued 
through the range of distribution channels described further in our strategic 
report on page 10. Our long term business premium income in 2015 of £18.9m 
(2014: £14.2m) is the highest since the incorporation of the Society in 2003, but 
is still below the level the Board believes is needed to secure the future of the 
Society beyond the business planning horizon.

Our member numbers at 31 December 2015 totalled 78,107. This is a reduction 
of 4,767 since 31 December 2014 which can largely be explained by the 
peppercorn exercise that has been completed in respect of our Leek Fund 
policyholders described in the CEO’s Report on page 7. The offer of lifetime 
membership provided an opportunity for those Leek policyholders wanting to 
remain active within the Society. 

Regulatory Matters
As I reported to you in 2014, the biggest regulatory challenge for the insurance 
industry for some time has been the European Solvency II Directive, which came 
into effect on 1 January 2016. 

Much of the Board and Management’s time in 2015 has focused on ensuring 
that the Society was ready to implement Solvency II. I am pleased to report that 
following much hard work, the Society was fully prepared for the new regime.

The Society has also implemented the new Senior Insurance Managers Regime 
(‘SIMR’). The SIMR provides a regulatory framework for the standards of fi tness 
and propriety, conduct and accountability to be applied to individuals in positions 
of responsibility at insurers.

The other key change that you will see referred to throughout these fi nancial 
statements is the adoption of the new UK accounting standards. “FRS 102: 
The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” 
is the main new accounting standard, which is supplemented by “FRS 103: 
Insurance Contracts”.

Whilst this change in accounting rules does not change the underlying 
performance of the Society, or its cash fl ows, this change in presentation has 
required a restatement of the 2014 results within these fi nancial statements. 
Further details can be found on page 78.

Chairman’s Report

Our long term business premium 
income in 2015 of £18.9m (2014: 
£14.2m) is the highest since the 
incorporation of the Society in 2003

Overview
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Investment Policy 
One of the key areas of focus in 2015 has been our sources of investment risk 
and whether our current investment policies are aligned with our risk appetite 
and insurance liabilities.

This review has led to refi nements. We have changed our equity investment 
strategy from passive index tracking through Legal & General collective funds to 
an active strategy of direct holdings in a range of companies. This new strategy 
is being implemented by Quilter Cheviot who have managed our fi xed interest 
assets for a number of years and with whom we have a good relationship. 

As part of our investment objectives, we have considered how our portfolios are 
invested, particularly to ensure closer matching of our assets and their maturity 
or income dates with the different types of liabilities we hold and when these are 
most likely to fall due for payment. 

Reviewing these objectives, taking account of the risks we face, and our capital, 
has led to us having more closely aligned risk appetites by fund. Our with-
profi t funds have undergone considerable scrutiny to ensure our investment 
management actions minimise the need for capital support to be provided by the 
Group Capital Fund (‘GCF’).

Membership
We welcomed 21,000 new members at the end of 2014 from the Post Offi ce 
Insurance Society (‘POIS’). I trust that our new members have enjoyed their fi rst 
18 months as part of our Society and I hope they will continue to use the benefi ts 
on offer to them as a Foresters member.

Throughout 2015, the impact of the Membership Committee has continued to 
grow and I have been impressed with the quality of recommendations made to 
the Board. The terms of reference for the Membership Committee have been 
strengthened to give the Committee more responsibility and a more important 
role in the governance of the Society. It is a key conduit for allowing the Board to 
hear the voice of the membership. 

At the High Court in June 2015, delegates voted to unitise the Court Investment 
Fund from 1 January 2016. Unitising the Court Investment Fund ensures that 
the change in value of its assets is passed back to each Court individually by 
adjusting their Court Investment Fund balance appropriately. 

We have continued to strengthen our offering to our members by becoming a 
member of the Manchester Unity Credit Union (‘MUCU’). Our membership of 
MUCU offers our members’ access to fl exible, low premium savings as well as 
short-term reasonably priced loans.

We also continue to offer with-profi t products for sale to members as we believe 
there is still a place for this type of fi nancial product in today’s economic climate. 

Future Strategy
The Board spends a considerable amount of time each year reviewing the future 
strategy of the Society. We should not rely solely on our history and longevity to 
carry us through the 21st century.

With this in mind, the Board challenged Management to review the sales and 
marketing strategy for the Society during 2015 in a specifi c focused project, the 
key fi ndings of which are described in the CEO report. 

We continue to build upon our already successful distribution channels. Growth 
in sales of POIS business in 2015 has been generated through the appointment 
of more POIS introducers. Our existing members are always the best advocates 
for the products and benefi ts we provide and I hope to see more of our members 
opt to become Court Introducers through 2016. We continue to review all of our 
distribution channels and ensure they remain appropriate as described on page 
10 of the Strategic Report.

The Board continues to look at possible acquisitions as a way to increase 
member numbers in order to meet our strategic goals. 

Board
The nature of our constitution means that there is an inevitable change of 
membership on the Board on a cyclical basis as our Directors reach their 
maximum term of offi ce. At High Court in June 2015, we said goodbye to Cheryl 
Eagleson who had served the Society as a Non-Executive Director for a period of 
seven years. I would like to personally thank Cheryl for her time and dedication 
to this position. 

I was pleased to see Graham Setterfi eld formally elected onto the Board, having 
been co-opted in July 2014, with a vote of 97%. 

Following his successful year as High Chief Ranger, I was also pleased to 
welcome David Watkins to the position of Non-Executive Member Director.

In light of my retirement from the Board, and other changes in the next 18 
months due to maximum service terms being reached, there is a need to 
appoint new professional Non-Executive Directors to the Board. I am pleased to 
announce the appointment of Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier who were co-opted 
onto the Board on 10 February 2016.

I am also delighted to announce the appointment of Myles Edwards as our new 
Membership Director to support our Chief Executive Offi cer, Paul Osborn. I, and 
the Board, consider that Myles will be able to make a very positive contribution to 
the Board of Foresters and I hope that you will show your support at High Court. 

Thanks
I would like to thank the executive team, management and staff for their 
dedication to our members throughout 2015. Their hard work has been a critical 
factor in the progress that I am able to report to you. 

There are two individuals that I would like to single out for a special mention. 
Firstly I would like to congratulate and thank our Chief Financial Offi cer Sally 
Butters, who has now been permanently appointed CFO. Sally has successfully 
managed the actuarial and fi nance teams during 2015 to meet the deadlines 
imposed by the new regulations and the Society is well placed to move forward 
as a result.

Finally to our departing Head of Membership, Philip Howcroft. Philip made a big 
impression and achieved much in relation to the Court Review Project in his 
three years with the Society, and I wish him well for the future.

As I prepare to depart, it remains for me to wish the Society, staff and 
membership well for the future.

Mike Wilkinson
Chairman
8 April 2016

Overview 5
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Annual Report and Accounts 2015

It is with renewed vigour that I present 
my annual Chief Executive’s report, and 
I trust that you will agree that 2015 has 
proved to be another successful year in 
the Society’s evolution as we continue 
to build a strong future from our long-
established roots.

A Strong Platform
A year ago, I described the signifi cant efforts undertaken by all at Foresters to 
successfully complete the transfer of the POIS book of business. In respect of the 
administration systems and processes I have been impressed by how quickly the 
team has understood these in such a short period of time and identifi ed a clear 
path of development to further integrate them into our existing platforms.

As anticipated, the acquisition has increased our reported premium income in 
2015, contributing £6.3m to the total premiums received. It has also helped 
to reduce the overall costs of administering each policy, reinforcing a sound 
fi nancial platform from which to build future growth. 

During June, some 400 of us gathered in Southport for the 2015 High Court. 
This event was again very successful with all propositions agreed after a good 
debate. I always look forward to attending this event for two reasons:

•  I am proud to report to the delegates what the Board and management 
team have achieved during the last year and provide an update on the future 
direction of the Society. For the fi rst time this year, all of the managers from 
Head Offi ce attended High Court to meet the delegates. I know they found 
this an invaluable experience and they have already implemented some 
improvements from suggestions they received. 

•  I thrive on the opportunity to discuss our Society with members and to receive 
their constructive feedback. The depth of passion that the members have 
for our Society and their commitment to making it better and helping those 
in need never ceases to impress me. This passion is evident in the amounts 
raised for the High Chief Ranger’s Charity, which saw £58,288.77 donated to 
SENSE for 2014/2015.

We continue to receive exceptionally positive feedback for our customer service. 
We also have a high level of staff retention – 60% of our staff have worked with 
us for fi ve years or more, indicating we are a good employer.

Finally, in an increasingly complex regulatory environment, we were ready to go 
live with Solvency II on 1 January 2016 and we have successfully implemented 
the new UK accounting standards.

Review of 2015
There is much to report in respect of 2015 and I am pleased to say that the 
majority of this is positive news. 

Regulation

2015 has been a very demanding year with regard to regulatory changes. Our 
strong management team has enabled us to meet the majority of these changes 
in house. The major projects which have been absorbing our time are:

•  Solvency II – The major parts of the Solvency II project have involved staff 
from the actuarial, compliance, fi nance and risk teams. This has been by far 
the largest regulatory project the Society has ever had to undertake and has 
involved the review and interpretation of signifi cant amounts of legislation and 
guidance. We have received independent assurance from our internal auditors 
that we are on track to meet all requirements. There has been excellent 
feedback on the quality of the required documentation.

•  New UK Accounting Standards – The fi nancial reporting standards in the 
UK changed on 1 January 2015 and the Society is now required to report 
under “FRS 102: The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 
Republic of Ireland” and “FRS 103: Insurance Contracts”. This has been 
another considerable piece of work and, as you will see explained later in 
these fi nancial statements, has led to the restatement of our results for the 
year ended 31 December 2014 under this new regime. The major piece of 
work has been to classify our premium income between ‘investment’ and 
‘insurance’ contracts. The defi nitions of these classifi cations, how we have 
applied them and the resulting changes to our fi nancial information are 
explained on page 46.

Although both projects have brought benefi ts, the downside has been the 
amount of management time they have occupied and the additional costs 
incurred during 2015. 

Premium Income

Premium income has increased by £4.6m since 2014, with POIS premium 
income increasing from £1.7m (earned from 26 September to 31 December 
2014) to £6.3m in 2015. 

For individual business, new business on an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) 
has increased signifi cantly to £1.5m (2014: £0.8m), although new APE for Group 
business has decreased from £0.9m to £0.1m, resulting in a slight decrease in 
new APE for the Society as a whole.

A sales and marketing project was undertaken during the year which reviewed 
the products we offer, the channels we offer them through and what members 
really want from a modern friendly society. The key messages we have taken 
away from this project are to continue the focus on pre and post retirement 
family groups.

CEO’s Report

Premium income has increased by 
£4.6m since 2014, with POIS premium 
income increasing from £1.7m 
to £6.3m in 2015

Overview
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Leek Fund

We attempted to contact all 7,900 policyholders in the Leek Fund offering an 
enhanced surrender value to cash in these mainly small policies, as well as the 
opportunity to become a lifetime member of the Society. The offer of lifetime 
membership provided a route for those who wanted to remain active within 
the Society to continue as members. 3,100 members took up the offer of the 
enhanced surrender value.

Group Business

In respect of our Group business, we renewed two key schemes with a 
combined annual premium of £2.6m. Our Group claims paid has again been 
higher than experienced in previous years. However, we have reviewed this 
fl uctuation in detail and no trends have been identifi ed – the claims level is still 
within the expected range. 

Expenses

Our expenses have remained under control and under budget. However, we are 
not complacent and continue to focus on tight control in this area in order to 
ensure that we remain competitive.

We tendered the services of a number of key service providers during 2015, 
most notably the Society’s external auditors and internal auditors. We are 
committed to retaining the services of quality professional advisers whilst 
ensuring value for money on the fees we pay to them. We announced the 
appointment of Deloitte as our external auditor at the 2015 High Court and we 
have already benefi ted from their appointment as we have implemented the new 
fi nancial reporting standards. We also appointed Mazars LLP as internal auditors. 
Following negotiations, we also renewed the services of Willis Towers Watson as 
our Actuarial Function Holder and With Profi ts Actuary. 

Investment Returns

Our total investment income has increased in 2015 with total investment income 
of £15.8m (2014: £9.7m). However, this is primarily due to signifi cant gains on 
the disposal of our holdings in Legal & General Collectives as part of our change 
in investment strategy. By contrast, we have suffered unrealised losses of £2.0m 
during 2015 (2014: unrealised gains of £9.9m). Unrealised gains of £7.1m on 
our property portfolio were offset by unrealised losses of £6.7m from equity 
holdings due to the weakening of equity markets and £2.4m from fi xed interest 
investments as interest rates increased. 

People

Whilst referring to the fi nancial highlights, this would be an excellent time for me 
to update you on the changes in the fi nance team. Following a successful interim 
period, Sally Butters was appointed to the role of Chief Financial Offi cer from 1 
April 2015. Sally has worked for the Society since 2007 in the role of actuarial 
manager and brings a deep knowledge of the Society and its products to the role. 

Sally is being supported in her role by James Joiner, who joined as Actuarial 
Manager in November 2015 from Standard Life, and Rachel Hardy as the Head 
of Finance who joined us in January 2015 from BDO LLP. Rachel took over from 
Paul Evans in mid-2015 upon his retirement. Paul had worked for the Society for 
more than a decade and I would like to take this opportunity to thank him for his 
hard work and dedication and wish him an enjoyable retirement.

2016 and Beyond
Our growth in 2015 has been driven by the acquisition of POIS. I believe it is 
essential that the Society actively seeks growth both organically and through 
further acquisitions if it is to remain strong.

Many of you will be aware that the Society advertised the position of Membership 
Director in the national press in the autumn of 2015. This role has been created 
to focus on the marketing strategy being created and deployed from both Head 
Offi ce and our Courts, whilst ensuring that the service, policy and other benefi ts 
that members receive continue to meet their needs. Myles Edwards joined us on 
15 January after performing a similar role at Age UK for 10 years. I am looking 
forward to working with Myles, who brings a wealth of experience in sales 
and marketing and working with volunteers. Following this appointment, Philip 
Howcroft, our Head of Membership, left us on 31 January 2016 to pursue a new 
role. I would like to thank Philip for his signifi cant contribution to the Society in his 
time with us and wish him well for his new position.

Our Court network is unique and we wish to continue to invest in fully integrating 
the Courts with our different sales channels at Head Offi ce. In order to keep 
pace with our competitors, we must use the Courts to our advantage as both 
a distribution channel for Foresters products and a vital lifeline for those more 
vulnerable of our members. We strive to make a positive impact on their lives – 
this after all, is what our Friendly Society is all about.

It is clear to me that there will be further consolidation within the friendly society 
sector, predominately due to the increasing regulatory burdens placed on 
fi nancial institutions. Regulation can also occupy so much of management’s time 
that an organisation fails to spot opportunities for growth, leading to deterioration 
of the commercial side of the business.

Our Society is in a strong fi nancial position and this makes us an ideal candidate 
to complete further acquisitions or mergers.

Our message is simple - we are actively seeking other like-minded organisations 
who wish to uphold the fundamental principles of mutuality and be part of a 
stronger organisation. We have already demonstrated our commitment and 
ability to grow through the POIS acquisition in 2014 and will be using this 
experience to open a dialogue with a number of interested parties during 2016 
with a view to further expansion.

We are very much open for business and looking forward to a stronger future, 
whilst retaining over 180 years of history and traditions that have brought us to 
where we are today.

Thank You
I would like to thank the management and staff for their continued support and 
resolve to work hard for our members and pursue our ambitions for growth. My 
report has highlighted the successes that we continue to achieve and without 
their hard work and dedication, the Society would not be what it is today. 

Finally, I would like to thank our members for their continued engagement and 
providing us with regular feedback – together we can succeed in making the 
Society bigger and better.

Paul Osborn
Chief Executive
8 April 2016
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About Foresters
Foresters Friendly Society has been helping with family fi nances for over 
180 years. The ‘Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited,’ which today 
trades as Foresters Friendly Society, was established in 1834, although our 
origins lie in a much older society called the Royal Foresters, formed 
around 1745.

Before the development of government and employer health insurance and other 
fi nancial services, friendly societies played an important part in many people’s 
lives. Our fi rst members came to recognise they had a duty to assist their fellow 
men who fell into need “as they walked through the forests of life”. This ‘need’ 
arose principally when a breadwinner fell ill, could not work and received no 
wages. Illness and death left families fi nancially distressed and often destitute.

Addressing this need has been the main purpose of Foresters Friendly Society 
throughout our long history. Members recognised that by paying a few pence 
a week into a common fund, they would be able to offer sick pay and funeral 
grants when needed.

In the modern era, Foresters is a mutual insurance business with a social, 
fraternal and benevolent history. The Society delivers a wide range of benefi ts 
to members, including savings and insurance products and additional fraternal 
benefi ts. As a mutual friendly society, there are no shareholders. Profi ts are 
distributed to with-profi ts policyholders in the form of bonuses and are 
also used for the benefi t of all members through the Foresters Extras 
membership package.

The Society offers a range of fi nancial products that are simple, fl exible and 
affordable and are backed by excellent customer service. Insurance products 
range from with-profi ts and unit-linked to group life and sickness. Every 
Foresters customer (excluding Group schemes) has access to a unique range of 
valuable Foresters Extras, from free nurse advisers to discretionary grants, all 
made available at no additional cost.

The structure of the Society encourages members to participate in local 
branches, known as a Court. The Society has 190 Courts spread across the 
UK and the Channel Islands that meet socially on a regular basis to provide 
friendship and support to one another. Each Court is responsible for its own 
affairs. As well as having policyholders as members, the Courts have a number 
of fraternal members – individuals who do not hold a Foresters policy, but none 
the less participate in Court activities.

Today, the Society is led by a Board consisting of Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board is responsible for developing the strategy of the Society and 
the related business plans, as well as providing constructive challenge, advice 
and oversight to management. 

 

Objectives and Strategy
As a mutual organisation, we offer a service which can make a positive impact 
on the lives of our members. This was, and still is, the main aim of Friendly 
Societies and is evident in everything we do. We believe the service offered by 
Friendly Societies is as relevant as ever. 

The Board of Directors regularly reviews the strategy for the Society at their 
annual Strategy Days. The Society’s current strategy, which remains unchanged, 
is to continue to grow its business by offering good value fi nancial services 
products whilst retaining its core values of providing excellent customer service 
and worthwhile member benefi ts.

To support the above, the Society’s mission statement is as follows:

The corporate objective is to grow the Society and add scale in the 
following areas:

• Assets under management;

• Number of members;

• Annual Premium Income;

• Cost control;

• Customer and member service satisfaction levels;

• Member engagement in Court activities.

Strategic Report

To be the most 
member centric 
fi nancial mutual 

in the UK

8

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   8 20/04/2016   09:28



Overview

The types of sale we make
The Society’s insurance business can be divided into two distinct parts – products available to individual members either direct from us on-line or via our growing network 
of Introducers and Financial Adviser intermediaries, and products provided to organisations as group schemes. Our current group schemes cover a range of organisations 
from police federations through to agencies of charity workers. 

What we sell
The Society currently offers a range of fi nancial products that are simple and affordable and are backed by excellent customer service. The main products are:

Individual Products Description

Child Tax Exempt Savings Plan (‘CTESP’) A tax effi cient, regular premium with-profi ts savings plan with a guaranteed tax 
free cash lump sum for your child or grandchild. 

Tax Exempt Savings Plan (‘TESP’) A tax effi cient, regular premium with-profi ts savings plan with a guaranteed tax 
free cash lump sum. Save £25 a month for between 10 and 25 years.

New Individual Savings Account (NISA) A Stocks & Shares NISA providing tax free growth through a with-profi ts policy. 
Flexible contribution and withdrawal options. Also available to make use of the 
additional entitlement on the death of your spouse or civil partner.

Guaranteed Savings Plan A regular premium with-profi ts savings plan with a guaranteed cash lump sum. 
Save between £50 and £100 a month for between 10 and 25 years.

Investment Bond Invest a lump sum into a with-profi ts plan with the potential for growth free of 
any immediate liability to UK basic rate income tax or capital gains tax.

50+ Life Cover Pays a guaranteed cash lump sum, plus potential bonuses, after you die to help 
with funeral or other expenses.

Unit-Linked Savings and Investment Plan A regular premium unit-linked savings plan for amounts from £26 to £260 a 
month for a minimum of 10 years.

Unit-Linked Tax Exempt Savings Plan A tax-effi cient, regular premium unit-linked savings plan. Save £25 a month for 
at least 10 years.

Unit-Linked Children’s Tax Exempt Savings Plan A tax-effi cient, regular premium unit-linked savings plan. Save £25 a month for 
at least 10 years.

Medical Insurance – Guernsey only Foresters Healthcare covers primary healthcare costs for residents of Guernsey 
and Alderney.

Group Products Description

Life Insurance Provides a lump sum which is paid on the policyholder’s death or on diagnosis 
of a terminal illness.

Critical Illness Provides cover for the standard Association of British Insurers (ABI) critical 
illnesses. If required, the Society can provide cover for illnesses outside the 
ABI’s standard list.

Sick Pay Covers a specifi ed percentage of the policyholder’s salary for a pre-agreed 
period when the policyholder is off work due to sickness.

Business Model

9
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How we sell
The Society’s distribution strategy was updated at the end of 2014 to incorporate 
the new opportunities created by the POIS acquisition. The outcome of the Sales 
and Marketing project carried out during 2015 validated the existing strategy. 
Our current channels to market are:

• Digital channel – Foresters & POIS direct (individual sales)

• Direct Marketing - Foresters & POIS direct (individual sales)

• Court Introducers (individual sales) – sales made via a Court Introducer

•  POIS Introducers (individual sales) – sales made via a POIS Introducer 
primarily to Royal Mail employees 

•  Indirect (individual sales) - sales made via a Financial Adviser or 
Professional Introducer.

• Group marketing (group sales) - sales made via specialist brokers

The Society is committed to ensuring that our methods of distribution are 
relevant to the changing market place in which we operate. We recognise the 
importance of multiple distribution channels to remove the over-reliance on any 
one particular approach.

Our POIS Introducer channel has developed further throughout 2015. Since the 
POIS acquisition we have worked hard to grow the channel by recruiting four 
new POIS Introducers. This increases our reach, through the POIS brand. By 
establishing regular two-way communication with our dedicated team of POIS 
Introducers we have also been able to enhance the product range to ensure it 
remains relevant to the customers at whom it is targeted. 

Our Court Introducers continue to show interest in helping to achieve organic 
growth for the Society and we are committed to assisting our Court Introducers 
through the provision of regular training and communication.

Another distribution method in which the Society continues to invest is our digital 
channel. In April 2015, we launched our mobile-friendly website to facilitate 
the number of members joining us via this transaction method. In December 
2015 we developed the facility for existing members to top up their NISA and 
Child Trust Funds online and for lump sum Bonds and NISAs to be taken out via 
the website. The Society’s digital presence is enhanced further via our content 
marketing strategy. This is where we provide relevant and worthwhile content to 

third party sites which in turn helps to promote and reinforce the Foresters brand 
with the objective of driving traffi c back to our own site.

Financial Advisers and Professional Introducers remain of importance to our 
distribution and continue to promote the Foresters brand and generate new 
business. We continue to provide our intermediaries with the very high level of 
service they have come to expect from us and this in turn fosters better 
working relationships. 

The Society will continue to review our methods of distribution and make 
changes to enhance business results where required.

Key markets
A strategic sales and marketing project was completed during 2015 and one 
of the focuses of this review has been to gain a better understanding of our 
target customers. Reviewing previous profi ling results of the member base has 
reinforced the key new business target markets as:

• young families (in 30s and early 40s);

• older families (in 40s and early 50s); and 

• those pre/at retirement (late 50s and early 60s). 

We recognise that we have a large number of older members who make up an 
important part of our customer base. These members are likely to be our most 
active members making the most of the companionship our Courts offer and 
using the benefi ts on offer by the Courts. While they may not be buyers of new 
fi nancial products we want them to be advocates of our offering and to introduce 
Foresters to their friends and relations in our target markets.

We regularly review our chosen markets to ensure they remain commercially 
viable and are consistent with the Society’s overall progress towards our 
strategic objectives.
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Foresters Extras – Member Benefi ts
When a policy is taken out with the Society, our members are automatically given access to Foresters Extras at no additional cost. Membership can also be purchased as a 
stand-alone product. The current package of additional benefi ts on offer includes:

The Society supports a convalescent home in Bridlington, Yorkshire, which has been used by thousands of our members to rest, recuperate and recover following illness. 
Members can stay for up to two weeks over two years and non-members, such as spouses, can accompany them for an additional charge. We also provide grants for 
stays in convalescent homes in other locations.

Benefi t Description

GP Consultation Service The service provides telephone consultations or online face-to-face 
consultations via webcam and private prescription medication that can be 
delivered to your home. 

Healthcare Grants Our discretionary grants include assistance to cover the cost of dental and 
optical care.

Financial support for you The Foresters Support fund makes discretionary grants available to help our 
adult members in times of hardship by paying up to £1,000 to assist with 
diffi cult times.

Educational Awards Our Educational Awards provide grants for members aged 16 and over who are 
in further education and studying for a recognised qualifi cation. 

Convalescent Grants Our discretionary Convalescent Grants assist members recuperating after short 
or long illnesses by providing a stay in a convalescent home free of charge. 

Financial support for children The Foresters Child Support fund was set up to commemorate members who 
died during the First World War. It continues to provide fi nancial assistance to 
children in special need.

Foresters Care - confi dential, independent care advisory service Any member struggling with a serious health condition, or diagnosed with one 
in the future, can use Foresters Care.

Foresters Welfare Benefi ts Helpline Foresters Welfare Benefi ts Helpline gives all members access to free, 
confi dential, and impartial information concerning your entitlement to 
welfare benefi ts.

Manchester Unity Credit Union (‘MUCU’) Foresters’ members are able to join the Manchester Unity Credit Union if they 
wish. MUCU gives their members access to low premium savings products 
starting from £5 a month as well as access to short term reasonably priced 
loans to those who have been members for three months or more and meet 
the lending criteria.

11
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Introduction
The discretionary benefi ts provided by Courts are selling points for the insurance 
operation and, in the case of the insurance operation, sales provide new 
members for the Courts.

The Courts
The Courts are geographical groups of members who operate with their own 
funds and support social, fraternal, educational and benevolent activities. Each 
Court elects its own offi cers and in addition delegates who represent their Court 
members at the High Court (Annual General Meeting) of the Society. Delegates 
elect a High Chief Ranger each year to represent all Courts at internal and 
external events. This approach provides a governance structure for members to 
have their say in an organisation which they own.

There are currently 190 Courts and they are the local point of contact for 
members. The Courts seek to promote the ethos of the Society and encourage 
members to meet together for social, business and benevolent purposes. They 
also organise charitable fund raising events.

Since 2008 a process known as accreditation has ensured that Courts operate to 
a consistent standard and members receive a high level of support from Courts. 
Each Court is run by a Committee of Management responsible for the control of 
the business of the Court within the Rules and procedures of the Society. Each 
Court has a Secretary who is responsible for the accounting and administration 
of the Court and a Chief Ranger. Area Co-ordinators are staff members who 
ensure that the Courts in their Area adhere to corporate objectives and they, 
along with the Membership Committee, act as a conduit between the Courts and 
Insurance operations.

High Chief Ranger
The role of High Chief Ranger (HCR) is of a presidential nature acting 
as a fi gurehead for the membership, representing and promoting 
Foresters Friendly Society and is a key link between the insurance side 
of the Society and the members.

The HCR is also the Chairman of the Membership Committee (a sub-committee 
of the Board) and shares the responsibility of chairing High Court with the 
Chairman of the Board. At the invitation of the Board, the HCR attends a number 
of Board meetings during their term of offi ce.

At the 2015 High Court, Linda Levett was elected as HCR. 

Each HCR chooses a charity to support and members throughout the country 
raise monies for the HCR’s Appeal. For 2014/15, SENSE was the chosen charity 
for which the Courts raised a total of £58,288.77.

Linda Levett has chosen Alzheimer’s Research UK as her charity for 2015/16. 
Alzheimer’s Research UK is the UK’s leading research charity aiming to defeat 
dementia. Its vision is a world where people are free from the fear, harm and 
heartbreak of dementia. 

Finances
Court funds are maintained in separate ring-fenced funds which are only 
available to the Courts. At 31 December 2015, total Court funds amounted to 
£75.3m (2014: £74.5m). The make-up of the Court Investment Fund at 31 
December 2015 was as follows:

 70% Property

 12% Cash

 10% Other

 8% Fixed Interest

Court Investment Fund 
at 31 December

In addition to the Court funds there are a number of discretionary funds valued 
at £12.0m (2014: £6.6m) with specifi c purposes as determined by the Society. 
These are set out on page 61. Court income primarily derives from investment 
income, membership fees and other fundraising activities. Court expenses 
consist of the costs of administering the Courts, investment charges and other 
outgoings (including grants and donations). An analysis of the Courts’ income 
and expenses (excluding the general insurance activities of the Guernsey branch) 
is as follows: 

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Investment Income 4,013 3,996

Other Income 570 454

Total Income 4,583 4,450

Administration Costs 1,078 1,102

Grants and donations 687 647

Other expenses 536 563

Management charge 1,430 1,477

Total Expenses 3,731 3,789

Excess of operational income over expenditure 852 661

Realised/unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 323 214

Excess of total income over expenditure 1,175 875

Our Courts
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The Future 
Work to refi ne and implement the fi ndings of the Court Review Project has 
continued. The review, which includes external research, is designed to cover all 
aspects of how the Courts operate and to address the challenges they face in 
order for them to thrive in the 21st Century. 

The external research undertaken has identifi ed the pre and at retirement market 
as a growth area for the Society with health and wellbeing, fi nancial security and 
companionship being the three key areas of need and with the Courts playing a 
strong role in the latter. The conclusions from the Sales and Marketing project 
also identifi ed this target market reinforcing the importance of the insurance and 
Court sides of the Society working closely together to grow in this target market. 

One output from the Court Review Project was to carry out a review of the 
benefi ts being offered by the Courts to ensure that they remain relevant and 
where appropriate to enhance them. During 2015 the Welfare Benefi ts Helpline 
has been introduced. This is a phone service provided by the Manchester 
Citizens Advice Bureau which offers members free, confi dential and impartial 
advice via a dedicated helpline number. Advice can be provided on a range of 
issues including benefi ts, housing, consumer issues and debt.

In response to member requests for a low contribution, fl exible savings plan, and 
inexpensive loans the Society has reached agreement with the Manchester Unity 
Credit Union for the common bond for membership to be extended to members 
of the Society. This has been in operation since 1 January 2016.

The project also identifi ed a key need to improve member involvement and the 
Courts are being supported to develop a stronger web presence, communicating 
with their members via their own Facebook pages.

The investment strategy for the Court funds and the way that the Courts are 
funded have also been reviewed during 2015. This has resulted in the Courts 
benefi ting from any capital appreciation on their funds through the unitisation of 
Court funds from 1 January 2016.

Following the appointment of Myles Edwards as Membership Director, there 
will be a period of refl ection on the future direction of the Court Review Project, 
which should continue afresh with the benefi t of his experience with 
member organisations. 

13
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Introduction 
The results for 2015 are set out in detail on pages 39 to 86 and summarised 
below together with the Society’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). The KPIs 
show the six key measures that the Society uses to assess its performance 
covering premium income, expenses, membership, complaints, fi nancial 
strength and assets under management. The 2014 results include POIS from the 
date of acquisition (26 September 2014) to the end of 2014. 

In summary, premium income is up, expenses remain under control, fi nancial 
strength and funds under management have been maintained. On the other 
hand, membership numbers have fallen and complaints have risen slightly. 

Premium income
Gross long term premium income has shown a record high in 2015 of £18.9m 
(2014: £14.2m). 2015 premium income includes £6.3m in respect of POIS 
products (2014: £1.67m in respect of POIS products). New business calculated 
on an Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) basis decreased slightly to £1.6m (2014: 
£1.7m) with annualised regular premiums of £1.3m (2014: £1.4m) and single 
premiums of £2.9m (2014: £3.5m). Gross premium income of the Guernsey 
(medical insurance) general business remained consistent at £2.1m 
(2014 £2.1m).

Investment Income
Growth in the UK economy slowed slightly to 2.2% in 2015, compared to 2.6% 
in 2014. Infl ation has been lower than in 2014 and on the CPI measure has been 
close to or below 0%. Unemployment has remained at similar levels to 2014 and 
average earnings have increased faster than infl ation.

In the UK interest rates have remained at 0.5% for another year, and although in 
the US the Federal Reserve increased interest rates by 0.25% in December, there 
are still no fi rm indications of when UK interest rates are likely to rise.

2015 has been a year of considerable volatility in UK equity markets, with the 
FTSE 100 index closing at its highest ever level in April, only to end the year 
down 1.8%. Continuing uncertainty in the Eurozone, together with the general 
election in May have contributed to the volatility.

The Society’s property portfolio has produced good returns for the second 
consecutive year.

The total investment return (including unrealised gains and losses) for the 
insurance funds amounted to £5.2m (2014: £9.7m). The investment returns for 
the major insurance funds were as follows:

2015 
Investment 

Return

2015 
Investment 

Return as 
% of fund

2014 
Investment 

Return

2014 
Investment 

Return as 
% of fund

£’000 £’000

Order Insurance Fund 2,438 3.25 5,057 8.7

Group Business Fund 186 2.10 538 5.9

POIS Ring Fenced Fund 749 2.25 1,225 3.3

POIS Non Profi t Fund 1,881 (0.18) 935 2.8

The total investment return (including unrealised gains and losses) for the 
non-insurance funds amounted to £10.5m (2014: £10.4m). This arises from 
signifi cant unrealised capital gains on property holdings in 2015 of £8.2m
(2014: £5.0m).

Claims
Claim payments (including the Guernsey general insurance business but 
excluding claims administration expenses) were £27.3m (2014: £16.4m). 2015 
claims include £12.6m in respect of POIS products (2014: £3.1m in respect of 
POIS products). 

Total Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses amount to £8.1m (2014: £8.5m). The reduction is 
driven by a signifi cant fall in project costs, which in 2014 included the acquisition 
of POIS.

Court Benefi ts 
In 2015 the Courts paid out a total of £1,027,000 (2014: £871,000) in dental 
and optical grants, discretionary benefi ts and charitable donations. This is an 
important function of the Courts in continuing the fraternal and benevolent 
tradition of the Society. 

Total Assets 
The Society holds total assets of £263.6m (2014: £264.5m). Investments held 
include a mixture of equities, fi xed interest stocks, property and cash. Other 
assets include debtors, prepayments and accrued income.

Fund for Future Appropriations 
The Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) stands at £41.2m (2014: £42.5m) and 
represents the estimated surplus in the funds that has not been allocated and is 
available to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements. 

Premium income is up, expenses remain 
under control, fi nancial strength and funds 
under management have been maintained

Financial Highlights
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Financial strength
Available capital – Pillar 1

The Society has not been subject to any regulatory capital actions or breached 
its capital requirements, in the last 12 months. 

The available capital resources have been determined in accordance with 
regulatory requirements and includes the Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) 
adjusted to remove inadmissible assets and add in provisions. The total available 
capital resources amount to £37.7m (2014: £38.5m). The £24.7m (2014: £24.4m) 
held within with-profi t funds is available to provide terminal bonuses to with-
profi ts policyholders. The £13.0m (2014: £14.2m) held outside the with-profi ts 
funds is available to support the regulatory and other commitments of the Society.

Regulatory capital requirement – Pillar 1

It is necessary for the Society to hold capital to cover its regulatory capital 
requirements. The total long-term insurance regulatory requirements of the 
Society amount to £11.9m (2014: £11.5m) made up of the Long Term Insurance 
Capital Requirement (LTICR) of £7.8m (2014: £8.1m) and the Resilience Capital 
Requirement (RCR) of £4.1m (2014: £3.4m).

An additional regulatory requirement of £1.3m is held in respect of the general 
business written in Guernsey.

KPIs
The Society uses a number of key performance indicators to manage and 
monitor its business performance. (These are shown in the tables that follow).

Gross Premium
Gross premium income is the total income generated by the Society through 
regular premiums, new business and additional contributions. This measure 
is used to indicate how the Society is performing against income generation 
targets. The main reason for the increase in premiums in comparison to 2014 
is the addition of the POIS book of business for the entire fi nancial year. Further 
details of premium income are set out in note 3.
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Total Operating Expenses
Expenses are managed through the setting of budgets within the business 
planning process and a regular review and challenge process throughout the 
year. This is a Key Performance Indicator due to the importance of controlling 
costs. Expenses have decreased in 2015 mainly due to lower project costs. 
Further details on net operating expenses are set out in note 7. 
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Individual Membership
The size of the membership base is an indication of the scale of the Society. It is 
expressed as the total number of members (including the Guernsey branch) at 
the end of the fi nancial year. As at 31 December 2015 the Society had 78,107 
members which is 4,767 fewer members than 2014 (82,874), this decrease is 
mainly due to the closure of Leek policies.

Year

M
em

be
rs

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Fund for Future Appropriations
The Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) is used as an indicator of fi nancial 
strength and the ability of the Society to meet its regulatory and solvency 
requirements. The current value of £41.2m (2014: £42.5m) exceeds the 
Society’s regulatory capital requirements. 
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Complaints
Membership satisfaction is core to the Society. The Society measures member 
satisfaction by a number of different means, principally member retention, 
member complaints, investment performance, and results of membership 
surveys. Complaints are managed through the Society’s complaints process to 
ensure they are dealt with promptly and fairly. Whilst Membership complaints 
have increased during 2015 following a full year of POIS and a low level of 
complaints in 2014, they continue to be at a very low level. 

Complaints

Upheld

Year

N
um

be
rs

2012
0

10

20

30

2011 2013 2014 2015

Total Assets 
The value of total assets is another key indicator of the size of the Society as it 
seeks to grow. Total assets show the growth in the value of the business over 
time, through both increased sales, profi tability, expense control and investment 
returns. As at the end of 2015 total assets were £263.6m. (2014 £264.5m).
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Financial Highlights - continued
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Risk Management
Effective risk management supports the Society in delivering its strategy. 
It also protects our policyholders and members and helps with the effi cient 
use of capital.

The Society’s Risk Management and Control 
Framework
Risk is managed through the adoption of the Risk Management and 
Control Framework. 

Risk is considered from a fi nancial and non-fi nancial perspective. For each risk, 
mitigation and action plans are developed and monitored. Any material changes 
to those risks are reported to the Risk and Capital Committee and Board. 

Risks that could impact the Society within a one year period are monitored 
through the use of Risk and Control Assessments. The Society also uses stress 
testing as part of the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process to 
determine its Minimum Capital Requirement and Solvency Capital Requirement 
under the Solvency II regime.

Risk Appetite
Risk appetite, which is the level of risk the Society is prepared to take whilst 
pursuing its business strategy, is determined by the Board. The Board determines 
the risk tolerance from the stated risk appetite which provides a framework for 
management to apply risk limits and any actions. The Society monitors its risk 
profi le against risk appetite and reports this to the Board. 

The Society’s risk profi le is shown in the graph opposite – the graph sets out the 
relevant proportion of risk exposure in capital terms. The most signifi cant capital 
requirements for the Society continue to be in respect of equity market falls 
(Market Risk), and increases in mortality and morbidity (Insurance Risk). The risk 
profi le has remained largely stable over the year. 

Current Risk Profi le

 Market - 30% 

 Credit - 3% 

 Default - 2% 

  Insurance - 34% 

 Business - 12% 

 Operational - 11%
 Pension - 7%

Risk

17

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   17 20/04/2016   09:29



Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Overview

Risk Governance

Governance structure

2nd line of defence

Risk Function
Facilitate, coordinate, 

challenge, support, train 
and educate

CRO and Risk Manager

Compliance

Actuarial and Chief 
Actuary

Risk and Capital 
Committee

Business Risk and 
Compliance Committee

1st line of defence

Business
Ownership, 

accountability and 
responsibility for risk

Board

Department Managers

All Staff

Executive and 
Senior Management

Internal Audit

Audit Committee

External Audit

3rd line of defence

Assurance
Independent 
assessment

The Society operates a Three Lines of Defence model of risk management to 
enable defi ned roles and responsibilities for committees and individuals. 

First line day to day risk management is delegated from the Board to the CEO 
and then to the management team. 

The CFO and CRO positions are both held by one individual, Sally Butters. In 
fulfi lling the 2nd line responsibilities, the CRO is supported and overseen by the 
Society’s Risk and Capital Committee, which has ultimate responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Risk function, as delegated by the Board.

Risk oversight is provided as the second line of defence by the Risk and Capital 
Committee, Chief Risk Offi cer and the Business Risk and Compliance Committee. 
Specialist Risk Management and Compliance capability supports this. 
Standardised Risk Management Information is produced for the Risk and Capital 
Committee to support the committee in discharging its responsibilities. This Risk 
Reporting is shared with the Board on a quarterly basis. The Board oversees the 
ORSA processes and approves the annual ORSA report.

To ensure an effective third line of defence, an independent review of the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system 
is provided by the Audit Committee, which is supported by the Internal Auditors 
and External Auditors.

Further detail is provided on the role of the Risk and Capital Committee and the 
Audit Committee on page 26 and 24.

Risk - continued
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Details of risks associated with Solvency and Liquidity can be found on pages 75 to 78.

Developments in Risk Management
The main developments in Risk Management in 2015 were in respect of readiness for Solvency II implementation. The Society further developed its Own Risk and 
Solvency Assessment (ORSA) process; the ORSA is a key tool for the Society in linking together its Business Plan, Strategy and Risk Management processes and 
supporting risk based decisions. The Society enhanced its governance structure, policies and processes to meet Solvency II requirements. 

By Order of the Board
Lisa Russell
Company Secretary
8 April 2016

Risk 2015 and future Risk Mitigation 

Market Risk - Failure of the fi nancial markets as 
a whole or of a market participant resulting in loss 
from the change in value, or income from as asset, 
not matched by an equivalent change in liability

Volatility in the equity markets, slower growth in 
China and a collapse in commodity prices were 
seen in 2015. Although market failure is deemed 
a rare probability, the impact to the Society would 
be signifi cant and it is important to ensure the 
appropriate controls are in place should this 
situation arise. 

The Society has an investment strategy which 
ensures a diversifi ed portfolio of assets with 
benchmarks set by reference to risk appetite 
for each fund. This is reviewed regularly by the 
Investment Committee who review and monitor all 
investment activity on behalf of the Board. 
The Society performs stress tests for this risk and 
has set management actions for responding to 
market movements.

Strategic Risk - Failure to capture market 
opportunities through its sales channels – The 
Society’s business plan demonstrates the need to 
increase membership 

The Society continues to operate in a challenging 
sales environment. A review of the Society’s Sales 
and Marketing strategy was undertaken in 2015. 
The result of this review is that the strategy will 
not change signifi cantly, but more resource will be 
directed at the Digital Sales Channel.

The Society has a clear business plan aligned 
to its strategy and monitors progress through 
Management Information and Key Performance 
Indicators. As a result of the Sales and Marketing 
strategy review, actions have been determined and 
will be monitored.

Strategic Risk - Failure to capture market 
opportunities through acquisition strategy 
– a part of the Society’s strategy is to grow by 
acquisition 

One of the Society’s strategic priorities is to 
increase its size through acquisition. 2015 was a 
year of embedding for the POIS portfolio acquired 
in September 2014. 

The Society maintains key relationships with other 
Friendly Societies and maintains suffi cient liquid 
resources to fi nance a potential acquisition. 

Insurance Risk - Group and Sickness Claims 
Insurance risk - inherent uncertainties as to 
the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance 
liabilities

Group life claims of £4.5m were paid in 2015. The 
catastrophe reinsurance arrangement for Group 
business was reviewed in 2015. 
Eunisure Incomesure sickness policy premiums 
were reviewed in 2015 and increased to refl ect 
higher future expected claims.

The Society monitors actual claims experience 
against expected claims. Claims management 
processes are in place for the longer term sickness 
benefi t claims. Pricing reviews are undertaken in 
line with the policy terms.

Regulatory Risk - Regulatory change - Changing 
shape of the industry due to changing customer 
needs and regulations

The most signifi cant project for the Society in 2015 
was the successful implementation of Solvency II 
by 1 January 2016. Over the next few years there 
will also be changes to regulation on Packaged 
Retail and Insurance Based Investment Products 
(PRIIPS), Key Features Documents (KFDs) and 
Data Protection. Regulators continue to focus 
on customer outcomes, particularly on product 
design, advice, product lifecycle and the after sales 
process.

The Society keeps abreast of regulatory change 
and for large regulatory projects invokes its 
project management processes. The Society has 
its risk management framework, which has been 
enhanced as part of Solvency II preparations, and 
a compliance framework to aid in the monitoring 
of conduct risk and to ensure fair outcomes for 
customers. The Society obtains regular customer 
feedback and undertakes an annual customer 
satisfaction survey.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The table below summarises the current principal risks that the Society has identifi ed and is managing as part of its top risk assessment, taking into account the likelihood 
and the impact of the risk occurring. These risks are closely monitored and regular updates are given to the Board and the Risk and Capital Committee. 
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Board of Directors

Mike Wilkinson
Chairman

Mike was appointed to the Board in September 
2012 and subsequently elected Chairman. He was 
previously Chief Actuary of Genworth Financial 
Lifestyle Protection in Europe before retiring in March 
2012, he has over 35 years of insurance experience 
in a variety of risk/actuarial, compliance, fi nance 
and senior executive or Board roles. He has a BSc 
(Class 1) in Mathematics, a PhD in Mathematical 
Foundations of Quantum Theory and is a Fellow of 
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Chairman of the Investment Committee. Attends all 
committee meetings.

Kathryn Vagneur
Non-Executive Director

Kathryn was appointed to the Board in March 
2008, and elected to the position of Deputy 
Chairman in September 2012. She is a Director 
of Durant Holdings, a private investment fund, 
specialising in business improvement. Previously, 
a Director with PricewaterhouseCoopers, she has 
a PhD from London Business School where she 
did research for the CBI and consulted on strategy 
implementation with FTSE100 companies. She 
is a Certifi ed Public Accountant and has an MSc 
(Management), BSc (Maths) and researches, 
teaches and writes about corporate governance 
and business improvement.

Chairman of the Risk and Capital Committee and 
member of the Audit, and Investment Committees. 

Paul Osborn
Chief Executive

Paul joined the Society in 2006 and was appointed 
to the Board as Finance Director in February 2007 
and as Chief Executive in November 2012. He 
is a Chartered Accountant with over 20 years’ 
experience in the friendly societies industry and 
over 10 years working for a London based fi rm of 
chartered accountants. Prior to joining Foresters, 
Paul worked for Teachers Provident Society holding 
senior positions in fi nance and investment.

Member of the Investment, and Risk and Capital 
Committees.

Trevor Batten 
Non-Executive Director

Trevor was co-opted to the Board on 10 February 
2016. Prior to his retirement in 2015, he held the 
position of Risk Director and CRO for Engage Mutual 
where he worked for 22 years and was a member 
of the Executive Committee. His experience includes 
risk management, actuarial reporting and with-
profi ts business. Trevor is a Fellow of the Institute 
and Faculty of Actuaries. 

Member of the Audit Committee, With-Profi ts 
Advisory Arrangement and the Unit-Linked Advisory 
Arrangement.

‘We’ve laid 
down the 

foundations for a 
stronger future’.
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John Instance 
Non-Executive Director

John was appointed to the Board in December 2012. He has recently retired from his role as Acting Director, Actuarial Policy in the Codes 
and Standards Division at the Financial Reporting Council. His experience includes business management, product development, actuarial 
reporting, as well as setting and overseeing business plans. John is a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries and has a BA in 
Mathematics from Oxford.

Chairman of the Audit, and Nominations Committees, the With-Profi ts and the Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements, and member of the 
Investment, and Risk and Capital Committees.

Penny O’Nions 
Non-Executive Member Director

Penny was elected to the Board in 2007 and appointed Senior Independent Director in June 2015. During her 36 years in fi nancial 
services, Penny has advised the public on investment, tax and protection; assisted insurers with policy design and marketing; contributed 
to national and trade press, a variety of terrestrial television channels and various money advice websites. In 2013 Penny obtained a 
Bachelor of Laws (Honours), became a member of Middle Temple and commenced the Bar course. Penny now offers fi nancial, medical, 
legal and mediation services to the public.

Member of the Investment, Nominations and the Remuneration Committees, the With-Profi ts and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements.

Graham Setterfi eld 
Non-Executive Director

Graham was elected to the Board in June 2015. Graham is semi-retired and involved with the Prince’s Trust as an Enterprise & Next 
Steps Scheme Business Mentor. Prior to this, Graham held the positions of Director and Chief Executive for American Express Insurance 
Services Europe Limited as well as various marketing and management positions within the insurance sector including Àegon. 
Graham has an HND in Business Studies from the University of West England.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and member of the Audit, the Nominations and Risk and Capital Committees, the With-Profi ts 
and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements.

David Watkins  
Non-Executive Member Director

David was elected to the Board in June 2015. He has been an active member of Foresters for over 50 years and has completed two 
successful terms as High Chief Ranger – most recently in 2014/15. David is a retired Police Inspector having served for the Greater 
Manchester Police for over 30 years.

Member of the Audit, Membership, and Remuneration Committees, the With-Profi ts and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements.

Erik Vynckier  
Non-Executive Director

Erik was co-opted to the Board on 10 February 2016. He was previously Chief investment Offi cer at AllianceBernstein responsible for 
asset management and capital management for life insurance clients, and has held a number of senior roles managing with-profi ts and 
annuity funds. Erik graduated as a Chemical Engineer in Belgium and subsequently completed an MBA at London Business School.

Member of the Investment, and Risk and Capital Committees.
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Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance

Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Introduction
The Society’s Board of Directors present their report together with the audited 
accounts of The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited (the Society) 
for the year ended 31 December 2015. The Society is a friendly society, which 
incorporated under the Friendly Societies Act 1992 on 1 January 2003. Its core 
business objective is to provide fi nancial services products to its members 
in addition to discretionary fi nancial, social and benevolent benefi ts. At 31 
December 2015 the Society had 78,107 members (2014: 82,874 members). 
The Directors confi rm that the Society did not carry out any activities outside its 
powers during the year.

Directors
The directors who have served since 1 January 2015 are as follows:

Non-Executive Directors
Mike Wilkinson – Chairman 

Kathryn Vagneur – Deputy Chairman

Cheryl Eagleson (retired 15 June 2015)

John Instance 

Penny O’Nions – Senior Independent Director

Graham Setterfi eld

David Watkins (appointed 25 June 2015)

Trevor Batten (co-opted 10 February 2016)

Erik Vynckier (co-opted 10 February 2016)

Executive Directors
Paul Osborn – Chief Executive

Details of the current directors are contained on pages 20 to 21.

Business Review
The results of the Society are set out in the income and expenditure accounts on 
pages 39 to 41.

The Society consists of its Insurance and Court operations. The consolidated results 
include the results of the Leeds Investment Association, as outlined in note 2 to the 
fi nancial statements. The Sheffi eld Investment Association was legally dissolved in 
February 2015 and is therefore only included in the results of the prior period. The 
Society also has one subsidiary company – Foresters General Insurance Services 
Limited, but this subsidiary is effectively dormant and its results are not material 
and are not included in these fi nancial statements.

A summary of the results for the year together with the Key Performance Indicators 
(KPIs) are contained in the Financial Highlights section on pages 14 to 16.

The Society remains fi nancially strong with surplus capital of £25.8m (2014: 
£27.0m) as shown in note 21.

The key risks facing the Society together with how they are managed, mitigated 
and reported are documented on page 19.

Regulatory
The Society is regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) which is 
responsible for the Prudential Regulation of fi rms and the Financial Conduct 
Authority (FCA) which retains the responsibility for conduct issues concerning the 
distribution of products to customers and how these products are administered. 

2015 has seen the Society focus on preparation for Solvency II implementation 
from 1 January 2016, as well as our Governance Map and wider implications of 
the Senior Managers Insurance Regime (‘SIMR’) and our Own Risk and Solvency 
Assessment (‘ORSA’). 

During 2016 the main compliance challenge will be preparing for a number of 
European initiatives that includes data protection and the Anti Money Laundering 
directive. These new requirements will require considerable effort to implement 
successfully but the projects will be fully planned and resourced. 

The Society remains clear over its obligations to the Regulators and the Society’s 
own Rules, its Principles and Practices of Financial Management (PPFM), the Anti 
Money Laundering rules, the Bribery Act, the Data Protection Act and Advertising 
and Health and Safety requirements and legislation. 

Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (‘the Act’) requires the Directors to prepare 
accounts for each fi nancial year which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Society at the end of the year and of its income and expenditure for 
that year. In preparing those accounts the Directors are required to:

•  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•  state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting standards have been 
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the 
accounts; and

•  prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 
assume that the Society will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which 
must show and explain the transactions of the Society and disclose the fi nancial 
position of the Society with reasonable accuracy at any time, and enable them 
to ensure that the accounts comply with the Act and the regulations under it. 
They are also responsible for the system of internal control, for safeguarding 
the assets of the Society and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and the detection of fraud and other irregularities. The Directors 
consider the Report and Accounts herein, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and 
understandable and provides the information necessary for members to assess 
the Society’s performance, business model and strategy.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate 
and fi nancial information included on the Society’s website. The Directors’ 
responsibility also extends to the on-going integrity of the accounts contained 
therein. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Directors’ and Offi cers’ Liability Insurance
The Society has maintained liability insurance cover for members of the Board 
and Senior Management of the Society.

Society’s Relationship with Members
As a branch-based friendly society, members are allocated to branches (known 
as “Courts”) which are represented through a delegate system at the Society’s 
Annual General Meeting (known as “High Court”). The Annual General Meeting 
takes place over a number of days and includes detailed discussions between 
the Board and member delegates on the performance of the Society and 
strategic issues. The Membership Committee acts as a conduit between the 
Board and the members through which matters of direct interest are considered. 
In addition, conferences are held each year at which the views of Court members 
are obtained and training provided.

Statement of Risk Management and 
Internal Control 
The Board, the Audit Committee and the Risk and Capital Committee have 
reviewed the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control system, including 
fi nancial, operational and compliance controls and risk management, in 
accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code: An Annotated Version for 
Mutual Insurers for the period from 1 January 2015 to the date of approval of 
this Annual Report.

No signifi cant failings or weaknesses were identifi ed during this review. 

Going Concern
The Board is of the opinion that the Society has adequate capital resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason the 
Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis for the Society’s accounts. 
In assessing whether the going concern basis is appropriate, the Directors have 
considered all relevant information including the information contained in the 
fi nancial statements, the latest business plan forecasts and estimated forecasts 
of solvency.

Longer-term Viability Statement
In considering the longer-term viability of the Society the Board has identifi ed the 
principal risks facing the Society and the basis of these risks. The Society’s risk 
mitigation is set out within the risk report on page 19.

The Society uses a stress testing approach to calculate its economic capital 
requirements. This is supplemented by sensitivity and scenario testing to aid 
understanding of the key risks faced. These scenarios help contribute to the 
Board’s decision making process when considering the long-term viability of 
the Society. The longer-term viability of the Society is further supported by the 
Society’s operational business plan. Both of these documents cover a three year 
look forward period. 

The analysis showed that on all bases of measurement, the Society was 
operating within risk appetite in aggregate and highlighted actions to be taken 
on individual with-profi t funds to more closely align them within risk appetite. 
These changes have been implemented during 2015.

The results demonstrate that the Society would still be within risk appetite after 
setting aside capital for another acquisition and to cover non-insurance expenses 
in the group capital fund over the business planning period.

The three year business plan shows the Society to still have considerable 
fi nancial strength at the end of 2018, even in the event of falling sales or failure 
to complete an acquisition or signifi cant falls in investment markets. 

As a result of the analysis and reviewing the three year business plan for 2016-
2018 prepared by Management, the Directors have a reasonable expectation 
that the Society will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as 
they fall due over the period of assessment.

Donations
The Society donated a total of £70,265 (2014: £69,100) to various charities 
during the year, of which £3,676 (2014: £3,100) was from Head Offi ce. 
No political donations were made during the year. 

Courts carry out charitable fundraising work as part of social activities and in 
2015 £66,589 (2014: £66,000) was raised. In total £170,538 (2014:£160,054) 
was paid out from branch held membership funds to various local and 
national charities. 

Each year the Society’s High Chief Ranger chooses a charity to support. 
Members and staff throughout the country support the appeal and during 
2014/2015 a total of £58,288.77 was raised for SENSE. As previously reported 
the HCR’s chosen charity for 2015/2016 is Alzheimer’s Research UK.

Statement of Solvency
As at 31 December 2015 the Society’s Capital Resource for each class of 
relevant business exceeded the minimum capital resource required by the 
Prudential Regulation Authority. 

Independence of External Auditor
Deloitte LLP were appointed as external auditor to the Society on 15 June 2015 
and have confi rmed their independence to the Board of Directors.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in offi ce as auditor 
and a resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting.

Statement of Disclosure of Information to Auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of this report confi rms that, so 
far as each of them is aware, there is no information relevant to the audit of the 
Society’s fi nancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 of which 
the auditor is unaware; and the Director has taken all steps that he/she ought 
to have taken in his/her duty as a Director to make him/herself aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the Society’s auditor is aware of 
that information.

By Order of the Board
Lisa Russell
Company Secretary
8 April 2016

23

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   23 20/04/2016   09:29



Committee Reports 

Corporate Governance

Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Audit

Current members

John Instance (Chairman)
Graham Setterfi eld
Kathryn Vagneur
David Watkins

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Offi cer, Deloitte LLP the external auditor and 
Mazars LLP, the external provider of internal audit services, attend meetings by 
invitation of the Committee. The Committee also invites other relevant managers 
as necessary to provide a deeper insight into key issues.

Number of Meetings held in 2015: 7

Key terms of reference:

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are described in: http://www.
forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-governance/

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

Annual Report and Accounts

The Committee reviewed the 2015 Annual Report and Accounts and the 
report from the external auditor, Deloitte LLP on the outcome of their audit. It 
also considered the other material accounting and actuarial issues in which 
judgement was applied. These included:

•  The assumptions and methods used to calculate the technical insurance 
provisions where the Committee looked to understand the reasons for any 
changes in the valuation process from 2014; 

• the valuation of investment properties;

•  the assumptions used to calculate provisions in respect of the 
pension schemes;

•  the allocation of management expenses between the insurance business and 
the Courts, and between the various sub-funds in the insurance business; and

• the use of the going concern concept for the Report and Accounts.

The Committee reviewed the decision to adopt new accounting standards, 
FRS 102 and 103. It considered the consequent decisions to account for certain 
policies as investment contracts, the treatment of the POIS acquisition and 
consolidation of Investment Associations.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (An Annotated Version 
for Mutual Insurers) (“the Code”), the Committee considered whether the annual 
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable, 
providing the information necessary for members to assess the Society’s 
performance, business model and strategy.

External Auditor

Following a rigorous tender process involving seven fi rms, three fi rms were 
shortlisted to present to the Society. They were ranked using a pre-determined 
scoring criteria, which focused on their ability to deliver an effective and effi cient 
audit service to the Society. Deloitte LLP was subsequently recommended to and 
appointed by the members at the 2015 High Court as External Auditors for the 
2015 year end.

The Committee received and agreed Deloitte’s audit plan which identifi ed its 
assessment of the key audit risks. The signifi cant risks identifi ed included:

• Technical provisions: valuation and assumptions used 

• Valuation of investment properties 

• Assumptions underpinning defi ned benefi t pensions 

• Consolidation of components 

•  Revenue recognition contract classifi cation under FRS 103 “Insurance 
Contracts”

The Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process including 
feedback from management and agreed with management’s view that there had 
been appropriate focus and challenge on the primary areas of audit risk.

The independence and objectivity of the external auditor was considered and 
concluded to be satisfactory.

Internal Audit

In 2015, the role of Internal Auditor was put out to tender and following a 
rigorous process, Mazars LLP were appointed on 20 May 2015 reporting directly 
to the Committee. Since appointment the Committee has received reports 
following audits of the Society’s Court Audit Program, Operations, Product Life 
Cycle and Financial Promotions, POIS (post-implementation), Solvency II, and 
Third Party Suppliers. Consideration was given to the fi ndings, and particularly to 
management actions and responses to the recommendations.

Investment

Current Members:

Mike Wilkinson (Chairman)
Sally Butters
John Instance
Penny O’Nions
Paul Osborn
Kathryn Vagneur

Number of meetings held in 2015: 4

Key terms of reference:

The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee are described in: http://
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-governance/
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Key issues addressed by the Committee:

The Committee considered an updated investment strategy framework 
which included:

•  an assessment of the nature of the asset types that the Society uses and the 
Society’s liabilities and recommendations for appropriate backing assets;

•  investment risk and its mitigation in conjunction with the Society’s stated 
risk appetite;

• investment governance arrangements and investment managers. 

An appropriate strategic asset allocation for each of the Society’s insurance 
and Court Funds was considered and compared to the actual investments 
held, policyholder expectations, risk appetite and desired spread of risk. 
Recommendations for adjusting the backing assets in some funds were 
discussed and approved.

A review is being made of the progress made by Aston Rose, who manage 
the Society’s individual property portfolio, in the agreed property programme 
to diversify the portfolio including a review of new investment proposals put 
forward by Aston Rose. The core property portfolio experienced a total return 
of 24%.

The transfer of the remaining equity investments to Quilter Cheviot (the sole 
equity and fi xed interest investment manager) took place, which required an 
update of Investment Policy Statements, refl ecting an active investment policy.

The performance of the various asset classes and funds on a quarterly basis 
was reviewed to ensure that they were in line with expectations and risk. A close 
watch was kept on the volatile equity and bond markets during 2015. 

Membership 

Current Members:

Linda Levett (Chairman)
Glyn Carpenter
Shirley Grealy
Philip Howcroft
Michael Nightingale
Andrew Pooley
David Watkins

Number of meetings held in 2015: 8

Key terms of reference:

The main function of the Committee is ‘To promote active Forestry, as well as act 
as a conduit between the Board of Directors and the total membership and vice 
versa.’ The main responsibilities of the Committee are described in: http://www.
forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-governance/

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

During 2015, the Committee established a working group to drive forward a 
relationship with the Manchester Unity Credit Union to enable the Society’s 
members to invest small amounts and have access to borrowing at reasonable 
rates of interest. This facility was made available to members in January 2016. 

The Committee took responsibility for the Society’s Newsletter, Miscellany, with a 
view to re-launching in Spring 2016.

It also considered and approved a number of amalgamations and transfers of 
Courts. The terms of reference have been reviewed with a view to the Committee 
taking more ownership of member related activity. 

Nominations 

Current Members:

John Instance (Chairman)
Penny O’Nions
Graham Setterfi eld

Number of meetings held in 2015: 6

Key terms of reference:

The main responsibilities of the Nominations Committee are described in:
http://www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-
governance/

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

Following an open advertisement for the appointment of a Membership Director 
and two Non-Executive Professional Directors, the Committee reviewed a 
signifi cant number of applications taking into account succession planning 
for the Board Chairman and Deputy Board Chairman during 2016 and 2017 
respectively. It recommended that the Board appoint Myles Edwards as 
Membership Director. Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier were co-opted as 
Non-Executive Professional Directors. All three received a formal induction on 
joining the Board and as part of this process attended various conferences and 
meetings with members of the Society, and will be subject to election at the 
2016 High Court. 

The Committee considered candidates for the positions of High Chief Ranger, 
High Sub-Chief Ranger, Non-Executive Member Director and member of the 
Membership Committee. These candidates were presented to the 2015 Annual 
General Meeting for the consideration of the membership. The Committee 
also recommended the election of Graham Setterfi eld as a Non-Executive 
Professional Director following his co-option during 2014. 

Jointly with the Non-Executive Directors, the Committee considered key person 
dependency and a succession plan for the role of Chief Executive and other 
senior management positions was approved. 

The balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge on the Board 
is under constant review and appropriate training provided using our own in-
house expertise where relevant or by external providers. The Society operates a 
Diversity Policy as detailed on page 30.
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Remuneration

Current Members:

Graham Setterfi eld (Chairman)
Penny O’Nions
David Watkins

Number of meetings held in 2015: 3

Key terms of reference:

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are described in: 
http://www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-
governance/

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

During the year, the Executive bonus matrix based on the achievement of the 
Society’s key performance indicators was considered and recommended to 
the Board. 

The recommendation for a performance driven remuneration package for staff 
where pay reviews refl ect infl ationary rises, and a bonus scheme rewarding 
individual performance and corporate objectives was implemented. 

In addition our recommendation for the Executive Director and staff salary 
increases for 2016 was approved by the Board. 

The Committee considered the Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees and 
recommended no increases be applied for 2015.

The Committee recommended a Redundancy Policy which was subsequently 
approved by the Board, with future redundancy payments taking into account 
length of service and age. This will allow for the equitable treatment of all staff 
members. The Committee considered and recommended the remuneration 
package for the new role of Membership Director and recommended to 
the Board.

The Committee took into account external research of the latest market data 
when considering whether Director and staff remuneration packages and 
incentive schemes were fair and adequate and where appropriate adjustments 
were made. No Director or employee participated in discussions or decisions of 
the Committee relating to his or her remuneration. Further information on the 
Society’s Remuneration Policy is shown on page 31.

Risk and Capital

Current Members:

Kathryn Vagneur (Chairman)
Sally Butters (Chief Risk Offi cer)
John Instance
Paul Osborn
Graham Setterfi eld

Number of meetings held in 2015: 6

Key terms of reference:

The main responsibilities of the Risk and Capital Committee are described in: 
http://www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-
governance/

Key issues addressed by the Committee:

The Committee reviewed the top risks of the Society and provided oversight for 
the management of risk during the year, as well as monitoring the processes that 
deliver risk and capital management within the Society. The Committee received 
a quarterly Chief Risk Offi cer (CRO) report and Risk Management Information and 
any changes to risks were discussed and addressed.

As part of ongoing improvement to the Risk Management Framework and 
progress implementing the EU Solvency II Directive, the Committee considered 
and recommended Board approval of a report on the Own Risk and Solvency 
Assessment (ORSA is a set of internal processes constituting tools for 
decision-making and strategic analysis) and associated Solvency II Policies and 
Governance Mapping. 

As part of the Society’s preparation for Solvency II, the Committee reviewed 
the proposal to adopt the standard formula for calculating Solvency II capital 
requirements, the methodology for and the results of projecting solvency capital 
as well as considering proposals for bringing each funds capital position in line 
with risk appetite.

Meetings have been held jointly with the Audit Committee to address risk related 
audit issues and to input into Internal Audit priorities and planning.

With-Profi ts Advisory Arrangement

Current Members:

John Instance (Chairman)
Penny O’Nions
Graham Setterfi eld
David Watkins

Number of meetings held in 2015: 4

Key terms of reference:

The Society has one open with-profi ts fund – The Order Insurance Fund and four 
closed with-profi ts funds – the Pure Endowment Fund, the Tunstall Fund, the 
Leek Fund and the Post Offi ce Insurance Services Fund. Although each fund is 
considered individually, the main terms of reference apply to all funds. 

The main responsibility of each with-profi t advisory arrangement is described 
in: http://www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-
governance/

Key issues addressed in respect of the Order Insurance Fund, the Pure 
Endowment Fund, the Tunstall Fund, the Leek Fund, and the POIS Fund

The WPAA reviewed and agreed Management’s proposal to make an offer 
to policyholders in the Leek Fund to buy out their contracts for an enhanced 
surrender value. In coming to its conclusion that the offer was fair to 
policyholders, the WPAA took account of the likely investment returns available 
from the assets in the Fund, the cost of maintaining suffi cient capital to meet 
minimum solvency requirements, and the management expenses associated 

Committee Reports - continued
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with maintaining the policies in force. These factors when taken together 
indicated that there was little prospect of any material profi ts emerging in the 
fund that might be used to enhance the current level of guaranteed benefi ts if it 
were to run off in line with the policies’ terms.

The WPAA, taking the advice of the With-Profi ts Actuary, considered the areas 
where management had exercised discretion and concluded that the Society 
had complied with the Principles and Practices set out in the PPFMs of the 
fi ve with-profi ts funds in all material respects. In particular it considered the 
balance between annual and fi nal bonus rates given the expectation of lower 
investment returns persisting for an extended period in to the future. For many of 
the older policy types the WPAA saw that there is a substantial margin between 
the amount available to meet claims and the value of the guaranteed benefi ts 
enabling annual bonuses to be maintained while still allowing an investment 
policy seeking out real returns to continue to be pursued consistent with the 
PPFM. However, for some newer policy types, the current premium rates or 
policy charges indicate that there is a greater risk that maintaining the current 
annual bonus rates will require a more prudent investment policy to be followed. 
The WPAA agreed that it was appropriate to make a small reduction in the 
annual bonus rates on the 50+ Plans to reduce this risk and will continue to 
monitor the situation for other policy classes. 

Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangement 

Current Members:

John Instance (Chairman)
Penny O’Nions
Graham Setterfi eld
David Watkins

Number of meetings held in 2015: 4

Key terms of reference:

The Society has three Unit-Linked funds in operation – the POIS Flexible Growth 
Fund, the POIS Money Bond Fund and the POIS Savings Fund.

The main responsibilities of the Advisory Arrangement are described in: http://
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/about-us/company-reports-and-governance/

Key issues addressed by the Advisory Arrangement:

The Advisory Arrangement reviewed the management actions taken when there 
were technical issues which impacted on the daily calculation of unit prices and 
agreed that they were appropriate.

The Advisory Arrangement reviewed and recommended to the Board changes 
to the public document entitled, ‘How we manage our unit-linked funds’. This 
document helps explain to members how the funds will be operated and how the 
exercise of discretion may occur in relation to deriving unit-linked fund prices for 
use in working out policyholder benefi ts. The revision was approved by the Board 
and is available on http://www.pois.co.uk/media/252940/how_we_manage_
our_ul_funds.pdf
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The Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the Governing Body of the whole of the Society’s activities. The Board is responsible for the direction and management of the business of the 
Society in the fulfi lment of its mission and strategic objectives and in compliance with the Society’s Memorandum, Rules and any applicable legislation and regulation and 
the Society’s policies, principles and values.

In pursuance of its strategic objectives, the Board maintains a schedule of matters specifi cally reserved for the Board and it exercises all those powers that are not by 
Regulation, Legislation, or by the Rules required to be exercised by the Society at the Annual General Meeting or a Special General Meeting.

The composition of the Board at the end of 2015 is a mix of four Non-Executive Professional Directors, two Non-Executive Member Directors and one Executive Director 
(Chief Executive). A ‘Professional Director’ is identifi ed as having recent insurance industry knowledge and experience, and a ‘Member Director’ is one drawn directly from 
the membership, having knowledge of the Society’s fraternal activities. 

The Board believes the balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge remains appropriate although it will continue to monitor the position to comply with 
evolving regulatory requirements and to complement the Society’s Strategy.

Full details of the Society’s governance arrangements are set out on pages 28 to 30.

The Board and its Committees have conducted a review of their effectiveness during the year. The Board considers that each Committee has the requisite recent and 
relevant skills to exercise its role effectively.

The Board delegates certain parts of its responsibilities to Sub-Committees and to Advisory Arrangements which operate within defi ned Terms of Reference. 
Their associated reports on their activities during 2015 are provided on pages 24 to 27.

The Terms of Reference for the Board, its Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangement are available on the Society’s website at 
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/company-reports-and-governance.aspx

Board Attendance Table
Directors’ attendance at meetings of the Board, the Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangements of which they were members in 2015 is set out in the table below. 
During 2015 there were a number of changes to directors and the composition of Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangements but in all cases there was a quorum for the 
meetings held.

Board Nominations 
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Audit 
Committee

Risk and 
Capital 

Committee

Investment 
Committee

Membership 
Committee

With
Profi ts and 

Unit-Linked

Number of Meetings 12 6 3 7 6 4 8 4

Mike Wilkinson2

(Chairman) 
12/12 3/3 - 7/7 6/6 4/4 8/8 4/4

Cheryl Eagleson
(retired June 2015)

6/6 - 1/1 3/3 - - - -

John Instance 11/12 6/6 - 7/7 6/6 2/4 - 4/4

Penny O’Nions 12/12 6/6 3/3 - - 4/4 - 4/4

Paul Osborn1 12/12 - - - 6/6 4/4 - -

Graham Setterfi eld3 12/12 3/3 3/3 7/7 4/4 - - 4/4

Kathryn Vagneur 11/12 - - 7/7 6/6 4/4 - -

David Watkins4

(appointed June 2015)
6/6 - 2/2 4/4 - - 3/3 1/1

An entry of 6/8 means 6 out of a possible 8 meetings.
1 The Executive Directors are invited to attend the Sub-Committees and Advisory Arrangement meetings, of which they are not members, as required.
2  Mike Wilkinson stepped down from the Audit, Risk and Capital, and Membership Committees and the With-Profi ts and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangements on 25 June 2015 in anticipation of stepping down as 

Chairman. He continued to attend meetings in an advisory capacity.
3 Graham Setterfi eld was appointed to the Nominations Committee and the Risk and Capital Committee on 25 June 2015 
4 David Watkins was appointed to Audit, Membership and Remuneration Committees and the With-Profi ts and Unit-Linked Advisory Arrangement on 25 June 2015.
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Corporate Governance

Chairman and Chief Executive
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are held by different people and 
the division of responsibilities between the two is clearly established, set out in 
writing and agreed by the Board of Directors. 

The Chairman is non-executive and is responsible for leadership of the Board 
and ensuring the Board acts effectively. In the opinion of the Board the Chairman 
is independent in character and judgement (although this is not a requirement 
of the Annotated Code of Governance) and prior to his election as a Non-
Executive Director in 2012 he had no previous relationship with the Society. On 
appointment the Chairman had no other signifi cant commitments to disclose to 
the Board of Directors, a situation that has not changed since his appointment. 
The Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Directors met without the 
Chairman present to appraise the Chairman’s performance.

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for managing the Society and for 
implementing the strategies and policies agreed by the Board.

Non-Executive Directors
The Non-Executive Directors are responsible for bringing independent judgement 
and challenge to the Board debate and its decisions. In the opinion of the Board 
each Non-Executive Director including the Chairman, is independent in character 
and judgement. 

The Non-Executive Directors meet without the Executive Directors present at 
least annually. Each Non-Executive Director is formally appraised annually and 
more rigorously at six years.

Copies of the terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive 
Directors are available for inspection at the Society’s Head Offi ce and can be 
viewed by contacting the Company Secretary.

Executive Directors
One Executive Director was in post at the end of 2015: Paul Osborn, Chief 
Executive Offi cer, his performance is appraised by the Chairman. 

Independence
The UK Corporate Governance Code: An Annotated Version for Mutual Insurers 
(the “Code”) requires the Board to determine whether each non-executive 
director is independent in character and judgement and whether there are 
relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear 
to affect, the director’s judgement. The Board should state its reasons if it 
determines that a director is independent notwithstanding the existence of 
relationships or circumstances which may appear relevant to its determination, 
including if the director:

• has been employed by the Society within the last fi ve years

•  has had a material business relationship with the Society in the last 
three years

•  has received additional remuneration from the Society apart from a director’s 
fee or participated in any of the Society’s pension schemes.

•  has close family ties with any of the Society’s advisers, directors or 
senior employees

•  holds cross-directorships or has signifi cant links with other directors through 
involvement in other companies or bodies

• has served on the Board for more than nine years

The Board has determined that Mike Wilkinson, John Instance, Penny O’Nions, 
Graham Setterfi eld, Kathryn Vagneur and David Watkins meet the standards 
set out in the Code and can be considered independent Non-Executive 
Directors, although the code does not require the Chairman to be assessed after 
appointment.

Senior Independent Director
The Code recommends that Mutual Insurers maintain a dialogue with their 
Members and maintain a Senior Independent Director to handle issues and 
concerns raised by Members. The Senior Independent Director also provides 
counsel for the Chairman and to serve as an intermediary for the other directors 
when necessary.

Penny O’Nions is the Society’s nominated Senior Independent Director and she 
may be contacted by emailing her at po’nions@forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk

Appointments to the Board and Re-election
The Appointment of new Directors is considered by the Nominations Committee 
which makes recommendations to the Board. 

Following co-option to the Board, a Director is subject to election by Members 
at the next Annual General Meeting. Thereafter, in accordance with the Society’s 
Rules each Director must retire at the Annual General Meeting three years after 
the meeting at which they were last elected or re-elected as a Director. 

Trevor Batten and Erik Vynckier were co-opted to the Board as Non-Executive 
Professional Directors on 10 February 2016. 

Myles Edwards was appointed as Membership Director in January 2016. 

All three will be subject to election at the 2016 Annual General Meeting.

Kathryn Vagneur was re-elected at the 2014 Annual General Meeting for a third 
term of offi ce however having attained the normal retirement age in 2016 her 
term is reduced with the option to seek re-election for a further one year term at 
this year’s Annual General Meeting. Kathryn Vagneur has indicated her intention 
to seek re-election. 

John Instance was elected at the 2013 Annual General Meeting and will be 
subject to re-election in 2016.

Penny O’Nions is due to retire at this year’s Annual General Meeting having 
served on the Board for nine years. David Watkins was elected at the 2015 
Annual General Meeting but having attained the normal retirement age at the 
time of his election, his term of offi ce is reduced from the usual three years to 
one year in accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992, Schedule II, Part 
1. David Watkins has indicated his intention to seek re-election. Both vacancies 
have been advertised within the membership and potential candidates will be 
interviewed by the Nominations Committee prior to making a recommendation 
to the Board. 
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Governance Arrangements - continued

Corporate Governance

Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Diversity Policy
The Board recognises the benefi ts of having a diverse Board and sees increasing 
diversity as an essential element in maintaining an effective Board without 
compromising on the calibre of new Directors. The Board has adopted a Diversity 
Policy which embraces knowledge and understanding of relevant diverse 
geographies, Courts/Branches, people and their backgrounds.

Appraisal and Evaluation
The Code recommends that the Board should undertake a formal annual 
evaluation of its own performance and that of its committees and individual 
Directors. During 2012 an independent externally facilitated evaluation of 
the effectiveness of the Board was undertaken by Pinsent Masons and the 
competency of each Director was assessed by The Young Company.

For the year under review the Board conducted an internal evaluation of its own 
performance and that of its Audit, Investment, Risk and Capital, and Membership 
Sub-Committees led by the Chairman and assisted by the Company Secretary. 
Meetings were held between each Director and the Chairman in which issues 
and developments over the year were discussed and performance was 
considered by reference to the objectives of the Board and its Sub-Committees. 
The issues raised during this process were discussed by the Board.

The Directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director also 
evaluated the performance of the Chairman and gave feedback which was also 
refl ected in the Board discussion.

Each Director is required to undertake a programme of continued professional 
development designed to expand and update their skills and knowledge, both 
within the Society and outside. The Chairman is responsible for reviewing 
training requirements for the Board as a whole and sources such training as 
required. CPD records for each director are held by the Company Secretary and 
form part of the annual appraisal evaluation.

Compliance with The UK Corporate Governance 
Code: An Annotated Version for Mutual Insurers
The Board is committed to following best practice as regards corporate 
governance wherever appropriate for the Society. The recommendations of the 
UK Corporate Governance Code: An Annotated Version for Mutual Insurers (the 
“Code”) are applied on a “comply or explain” basis. This recognises that best 
practice should be followed in most circumstances but that fi rms also have the 
opportunity to explain why certain recommendations were not applied.

The Society commissioned an independent external review of the effectiveness 
of the Board and its supporting governance framework by Pinsent Masons (a 
legal fi rm with no previous connection with the Society). Recommendations 
from this work have largely been implemented with the exception of the annual 
election of directors and proxy voting (see the table opposite). The Board believes 
that, in all material respects, the Society is now compliant with the provisions of 
the Code subject to the following areas:

Ref Extract of the Code provision 
where not compliant

Explanation

B.6.2 Evaluation of the Board of 
FTSE 350 companies should 
be externally facilitated 
every 3 years. The external 
facilitator should be identifi ed 
in the annual report and a 
statement should be made 
as to whether they have any 
connection with the company.

At the 2016 High Court, a number 
of Director changes will occur 
through planned resignations 
and retirements. Due to these 
changes, the Board decided to 
defer this external review until 
the second half of 2016 when the 
new Board is embedded to obtain 
the best future value for both the 
Board and members.

B.7.1 All Directors of FTSE 350 
companies (and mutual 
societies the size of 
Foresters) should be subject 
to annual election by 
shareholders.

As part of a review of the 
Society’s delegate system in 
2014, consideration was given on 
whether annual elections would 
be appropriate. Given the size and 
delegate structure of the Society 
it was recommended not to adopt 
annual elections and to continue 
with the three year term as 
provided in the Society Rules. This 
resolution was passed at High 
Court. The election process will 
remain under review.

E.2.1 For each AGM resolution, 
proxy appointment forms 
should provide shareholders 
with the option to direct their 
proxy to vote either for or 
against the resolution or to 
withhold their vote.

E.2.2 also contains 
requirements for proxy voting 
which are not applicable to 
the Society. 

The Society operates a delegate 
system and its rules do not 
permit the use of proxy voting. 
A review of whether the system 
was appropriate was carried 
out in 2014, using internal 
and external surveys. Given 
a high level of engagement 
at the Society’s AGM, it was 
recommended to continue with 
the current system and structure. 
A number of changes to further 
enhance the engagement and 
participation of members are 
being progressed. 
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This report sets out the remuneration policy for the members of the Society’s 
Board and will be submitted to the delegates for approval at the Annual General 
Meeting. It details the various elements of their remuneration in 2015, and 
explains how the Society has applied the ‘UK Corporate Governance Code: An 
annotated version for Mutual Insurers’, with respect to Directors’ remuneration.

Remuneration Committee
The role and list of Non-Executive Directors who sit on the Remuneration 
Committee is shown on page 26. The Chief Executive is invited to attend the 
meetings to participate in discussions on remuneration policy but is excluded 
from detailed discussions relating to his own remuneration.

Remuneration Policy
The Society’s remuneration policy aims to attract, motivate, support and retain 
high quality individuals with the necessary skills to achieve the Society’s 
strategic objectives, meet regulatory requirements and support the short, 
medium and long-term interests of members. Remuneration is considered within 
the fi nancial services sector for the geographical location the Society occupies. 
The policy is to provide a “mid-market” level of salary and a good working 
environment. Salaries are reviewed annually and all staff are entitled to join a 
defi ned contribution pension scheme.

Remuneration policy for Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors are elected for a three year period by the members at 
the Annual General Meeting, subject to FCA/PRA approval. This appointment 
can be extended for two further periods of three years at which point the Non-
Executive Director has to stand down in accordance with the Society’s Rules. The 
Board will determine any notice period that is convenient to both the Society and 
the Director under other circumstances. 

The remuneration of all Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, is 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Remuneration Committee using expert 
advice and guidance from both internal and external sources. A recommendation 
is made to the Board which then puts a proposition to the delegates at the 
Annual General Meeting to receive any remuneration changes. The Non-
Executive Directors are only entitled to fees and expenses, and do not participate 
in any performance related pay schemes, or receive any pension arrangements 
or other benefi ts.

Remuneration policy for Executive Directors
The remuneration policy of the Executive Directors comprises of basic salary, a 
contributory pension and other benefi ts. The remuneration is approved by the 
Board based upon recommendation by the Remuneration Committee, which 
includes all salary amendments. The Chief Executive’s remuneration for 2015 
attracted a non-pensionable annual performance related cash bonus which 
was linked to individual and team contribution towards the Society fulfi lling its 
strategic objectives, payable in the fi rst quarter of 2016. The Society retains 
the right to adjust or hold back any bonus payment in the instance where the 
Board have cause for concern that the achievement of the results has been to 
the detriment to treating customers fairly. Executive Directors are also entitled 
to benefi ts in kind that include a company car (or an equivalent allowance) and 
private medical insurance. 

The employment contract of the Executive Directors requires a contractual notice 
period of six months by either party. The Remuneration Committee will carefully 
consider what compensation commitments (including pension contributions 
and all other elements) their Directors’ terms of appointment would entail in the 
event of their early termination.

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Annual Report and Accounts 2015

Directors’ remuneration 

*in addition, Neil Armitage received £46,442 in lieu of his notice period and £93,603 in compensation for loss of offi ce.

**Chose to waive their supplementary fee of £2,500 as Chairman of Sub-Committees in recognition of the Society’s strategy to reduce costs.

Directors’ pension benefi ts
Non-Executive Directors do not receive any pensionable benefi ts from the Society. The Executive Directors are invited after three months’ service to become a member of 
the Society’s Group Personal Pension Scheme, which is a money purchase stakeholder pension scheme with Scottish Widows plc. After six months’ service, the Society 
makes contributions. The Society’s contributions are shown in the remuneration table above to this scheme. 

Benefi ts in kind
Benefi ts in kind were standardised amongst the Society’s Executive Directors during 2013 and include medical Insurance to cover the employee’s spouse or partner and 
dependants and critical illness cover. 

Bonus scheme
The bonus scheme for the Chief Executive in 2015 contains two elements, the fi rst of which rewards performance in the previous twelve months and the second element 
reserving a percentage of the bonus for the attainment of long term strategic objectives with both elements of the bonus being split to recognise individual and collective 
performance. In 2015, the Chief Executive was awarded £25,779.60, but the Society did not offer the option to participate in a long term incentive plan.

Graham Setterfi eld
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
8 April 2016

Salary/
Fees (£)

Bonuses 
(£)

Benefi ts 
(£)

Pension 
Contributions 

(£)

Total
2015 (£)

Total 
2014 (£)

Non-Executives

Mike Wilkinson 25,000 - - - 25,000 25,000

Cheryl Eagleson ** 10,000 - - - 10,000 20,416

John Instance ** 20,000 - - - 20,000 20,416

Penny O’Nions 22,500 - - - 22,500 22,500

Graham Setterfi eld 21,250 - - - 21,250 9,744

Kathryn Vagneur 22,500 - - - 22,500 22,500

David Watkins (appointed 25 June 2015) 10,000 - - - 10,000 -

Executives

Paul Osborn 143,220 25,780 19,428 14,644 203,072 195,445

Neil Armitage (redundant 9 May 2014) * - - - - - 55,863

Patrick Phelps (resigned 31 October 2014) - - - - - 105,625

334,322 477,509

Directors’ Remuneration Report - continued
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Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report 

Opinion on fi nancial statements of The Ancient 
Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited
In our opinion the fi nancial statements:

•  give a true and fair view of the state of the Consolidated and Society’s affairs 
as at 31 December 2015 and of its profi t for the year then ended;

•  the Consolidated and Society fi nancial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and

•  the fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Friendly Societies Act 1992.

The fi nancial statements comprise the Consolidated and Society Income 
and Expenditure Accounts, the Consolidated and Society Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the related 
notes 1 to 29. The fi nancial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United 
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 “The 
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and 
FRS 103 “Insurance Contracts”.

Going concern and the directors’ assessment of 
the principal risks that would threaten the solvency 
or liquidity of the Society
We have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to:

•  the directors’ confi rmation on page 23 that they have carried out a robust 
assessment of the principal risks facing the Society, including those that 
would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

•  the disclosures on pages 19 and 75 to 78 that describe those risks and 
explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

•  the directors’ statement on page 23 to the fi nancial statements about whether 
they considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
in preparing them and their identifi cation of any material uncertainties to the 
Society’s ability to continue to do so over a period of at least twelve months 
from the date of approval of the fi nancial statements;

•  the directors’ explanation on page 23 as to how they have assessed the 
prospects of the Society, over what period they have done so and why they 
consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether 
they have a reasonable expectation that the Society will be able to continue 
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their 
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any 
necessary qualifi cations or assumptions.

We agreed with the directors’ adoption of the going concern basis of accounting 
and we did not identify any such material uncertainties. However, because not all 
future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as 
to the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Independence
We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical 
Standards for Auditors and we confi rm that we are independent of the Society 
and we have fulfi lled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those 
standards. We also confi rm we have not provided any of the prohibited non-audit 
services referred to in those standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are those that 
had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in 
the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team. The key risks we 
identifi ed are:

1. Technical provisions: valuation and assumptions used 

2. Valuation of investment properties 

3. Assumptions underpinning defi ned benefi t pensions 

4. Consolidation of components 

5.  Revenue recognition contract classifi cation under FRS 103 
“Insurance Contracts”

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of the Ancient 
Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

 1. Technical provisions: valuation and 
assumptions used 

At the year-end the Society carried technical 
provisions of £133m (2014: £138m) prepared in line 
with the accounting policy on Long Term Business 
Provision (See note 1). We consider these provisions 
material both quantitatively and qualitatively.

Technical provisions are calculated using policy 
data held on the Society’s administration system 
and assumptions set using internal and external 
data as inputs to the actuarial valuation models 
(Prophet and Excel spreadsheets).The assessment 
of the appropriate carrying value of the technical 
provisions requires management to make signifi cant 
judgements when determining the underlying 
assumptions. These judgements involve considering 
whether the assumptions appropriately refl ect 
the Society’s circumstances and experience. The 
principal economic assumption is the valuation 
interest rate while the principal non-economic 
assumption is the allowance for future expenses.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the internal controls put in place by management to 
manage the risks associated with the setting of technical provisions assumptions.

Our audit team includes actuarial experts who have audited the technical provisions results production 
process. This included assessing the effectiveness of controls demonstrating the accuracy and completeness 
of the policy data used in the actuarial models, reviewing the appropriateness of assumptions and 
methodology used to calculate the technical provisions and considering the resulting reasonableness of the 
technical provisions disclosed in the PRA returns and the accounts. 

We have assessed the competence of the actuarial team involved in the assumption setting process. In 
addition, we have challenged the conclusions drawn from the analysis underpinning the above processes 
as well as considered assumptions and methodology in light of data external to the Society and generally 
accepted actuarial practices. 

Our experts also reviewed the analysis of change in results over the year, focusing on modelled reserves from 
Prophet and other reserves calculated manually. Their review focused on output by key product line in order 
to understand and challenge results in discussion with the actuarial team. 

We have agreed, on a sample basis, the assumptions approved by the Board through to application within the 
actuarial valuation models.

We have also assessed the relevant disclosures within the fi nancial statements (note 20) by agreement back 
to supporting data that we tested within our audit.

2. Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are held at fair value in the 
annual accounts and they are material at £64m 
(2014: £59m), as outlined in the accounting policy 
Land and Buildings (note 1)

Management relies on external valuation experts. 
Currently the Society engages an external RICS 
registered third party to provide property valuations 
of investment properties 

The Courts investment properties worth £3.7m 
(2014: £4.2m) have been valued using separate local 
RICS approved fi rms. 

We consider that there is a risk that inappropriate 
assumptions could lead to an incorrect valuation. 
Further there is the risk that the experts used lack 
the requisite skills and independence. This risk is 
higher for the £3m of properties owned by the Courts 
as they engage their own specialists, separate to 
those engaged for the main Foresters Society. 

Additional information on the investment valuation is 
provided in note 12 to the fi nancial statements.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the internal controls put in place by management to 
manage the risks associated with the valuation of investment properties

We have assessed the competence of the independent valuation specialist used by the Society. Our challenge 
has involved the use of property valuation experts within our audit team to directly challenge the assumptions 
and methodology used in the valuation process and the rationale for any changes in assumptions and fair 
values. 

The rationale for economic changes (e.g. infl ation, market conditions etc.) in the overall valuation was 
evaluated by reference to external publically available data on relevant property value trends. 

The rationale for changes in individual property values caused by changes in condition, rental income streams 
or tenancy agreements were assessed on a sample basis and, where applicable, the impact was recalculated.

We also assessed the competence of those used in the valuation of properties within the courts by 
comparison to the RIC register.

In addition, we have performed substantive testing on a sample basis to confi rm the rights and obligations 
over the portfolio.

We have also assessed the relevant disclosures within the fi nancial statements (note 12) by agreement back 
to supporting data that we tested within our audit.

Independent auditor’s report 
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

3. Assumptions underpinning defi ned 
benefi t pensions 

The Society currently has a net Asset Surplus, 
which is the net of the pension assets and 
liabilities. The calculation of the Society’s pension 
scheme liabilities follows accounting policy on 
Pension Schemes (note 1) and involves signifi cant 
judgement for key assumptions. Small changes to 
individual assumptions can have a material effect 
on the fi nancial statements. We have identifi ed the 
infl ation and discount rates used as specifi c risks. 
The key judgements are the CPI rate determined 
and adopted as the modelled infl ation rate and the 
discount rate used to arrive at a present value for the 
schemes’ obligations These obligations are £6.4m 
in 2015 ( 2014: £7.2m). An adjustment of around 
a 0.5 percentage point change in either of these 
rates would have a material impact on the fi nancial 
statements and could change the net asset from a 
surplus to a defi cit.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the internal controls put in place by management to 
manage the risks associated with the setting of assumptions underpinning defi ned benefi t pensions.

We utilised our internal pension actuaries in our testing of this balance.

We benchmarked the key assumptions used against those adopted by other fi rms, in order to determine 
where they sat within the observed range. This formed the basis of our challenge of the appropriateness of 
the assumptions adopted, along with the actual historical experience of the Society. 

The net pension scheme surplus has been recognised on the basis that the Society will be able to reduce 
future contributions to the scheme by the total amount of the surplus, requiring the share of the cost of future 
accrual to be greater than the surplus value. We compared the calculated surplus against the terms of the 
scheme trust deed to determine whether these terms had been followed correctly. We then compared to 
FRS102 to confi rm whether this recognition was in line with FRS 102. 

We also tested substantively a sample of the data which is used in pension calculations. 

We have also assessed the relevant disclosures within the fi nancial statements (note 23) by agreement back 
to supporting data that we tested within our audit.

4. Consolidation of components 

Consolidation of components is outlined in the 
accounting policy Basis Of Preparation (Note 1) 
There is a risk that the Courts and Leeds Investment 
Association may have been inappropriately 
consolidated, due to a lack of control. This is 
particularly relevant for the Guernsey Court and 
Leeds Investment Association, which have their own 
Boards and external Auditors.

Key questions include:

•  Is the Society required to support Guernsey Court 
if its insurance business fails?

•  Does the Society have control over the 
Court’s assets?

Conversely the Derby Investment Association is 
not currently consolidated and so there is a risk 
that the Society does have control and it has been 
inappropriately excluded.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the internal controls put in place by management to 
manage the risks associated with the consolidation process.

To address this risk we obtained and reviewed management’s paper laying out their judgement regarding the 
basis of consolidation, comparing management’s assessment to the relevant reporting standards.

We obtained and read the rules of the investment associations to help inform our opinion on whether the 
Society can exercise control over them.

We also considered the liability position of the Society with regard to the Courts and Investment Associations 

We have also assessed the relevant disclosures within the fi nancial statements (note 2) by agreement back to 
supporting data that we tested within our audit.
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

 5. Revenue recognition contract 
classifi cation under FRS 103 “Insurance 
Contracts”

Revenue is recognised as outlined in the Premium 
Income accounting policy (note 1).

We have identifi ed the allocation of premiums 
received to ensure appropriate classifi cation of 
insurance and investments contracts, and their 
inclusion in the balance sheet or the profi t and loss 
account, as specifi c revenue recognition risks. If 
incorrectly classifi ed this could lead to a material 
misstatement in the profi t and loss and the 
balance sheet.

The key judgement here is whether contracts 
transfer signifi cant insurance risk to the Society, 
from the policyholder. In this case, they are insurance 
contracts, under FRS 103, and the premiums are 
accounted for through the technical profi t and 
loss account. For contracts which do not transfer 
signifi cant insurance risk, FRS 103 requires that 
they be treated as investment contracts, meaning 
that premiums received are accounted for on the 
balance sheet using deposit accounting under FRS 
102 section 11. 

Furthermore, there is a risk that some savings 
products with insurance risk may require 
“unbundling” under FRS 103.

We have reviewed revenue recognition policies for appropriateness and consistency with accounting 
standards. This involved testing the classifi cation of insurance and investments contracts on a sample basis 
and whether their inclusion in balance sheet or profi t and loss account was appropriate. This was achieved by 
looking at the supporting literature and comparing to policy information across a sample of policies.

We have assessed the design and implementation of the internal controls put in place by management to 
manage the risks associated with the contract classifi cation.

Substantive testing was performed on a sample of premiums recorded in the policy administration system to 
determine whether they had been recorded completely and accurately in the general ledger. 

Our samples were selected using bespoke data analytics which interrogate the underlying policy data to 
highlight samples of a higher risk.

We identifi ed 15 characteristics of interest, including:

• trend of types of premium paid/value over time;

• premium handlers with multiple approvers;

• frequency of cancellation/renewal by policy type over time;

• comparison of premium income to marketing expenses over time; and 

• approval outliers within an approver’s limits 

We have also assessed the relevant disclosures within the fi nancial statements (note 3) by agreement back to 
supporting data that we tested within our audit.

The description of risks above should be read in conjunction with the signifi cant issues considered by the Audit Committee discussed on page 24.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the fi nancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 
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Our application of materiality
We defi ne materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the fi nancial 
statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable person would be changed or infl uenced. We use materiality both 
in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of 
our work. The application of materiality involves both quantitative and 
qualitative considerations.

We determined materiality for the Society to be £1,245,000, which is 
approximately 3% of the Fund for Future Appropriations. 

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee 
all audit differences in excess of £20,000, as well as differences below that 
threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also 
report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identifi ed when 
assessing the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit
Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the entity and its 
environment, including internal control, and assessing the risks of material 
misstatement. Audit work to respond to the risks of material misstatement was 
performed directly by the audit engagement team.

We have utilised component auditors from other fi rms to assist with our Group 
audit, relying on separate component auditors for the Guernsey Court and Leeds 
Investment Association. These signifi cant components were subject to full scope 
audits which were executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual 
entity of £550,000 and £715,000 respectively.

We held meetings with the component audit teams, discussed their risk 
assessments, and reviewed documentation of the fi ndings from their work.

At the parent Society level we also tested the consolidation process and carried 
out analytical procedures to confi rm our conclusion that there were no signifi cant 
risks of material misstatement of the aggregated fi nancial information of 
the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of specifi ed account 
balances.

The Society uses a service organisation in the valuation of the main Society 
investment property portfolio. See risk 2 above for details of our work. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Friendly 
Societies Act 1992
In our opinion the report of the directors has been prepared in accordance with 
the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and the regulations made under it, and the 
information given therein is consistent with the Financial Statements for the 
fi nancial year.

Other Matters

Corporate Governance Statement

In accordance with our instructions from the Society we review whether the 
Corporate Governance Statement refl ects the Society’s compliance with those 
provisions of the Annotated UK Corporate Governance Code specifi ed for our 
review by the Association of Financial Mutuals.

Matters on which we are required to report by 
exception

Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Friendly Societies Act 1992 we are required to report to you if, 
in our opinion:

• proper accounting records have not been kept; or 

• the Financial Statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

•  we have not received all the information and explanations and access to 
documents that we required for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are required to 
report to you if, in our opinion, information in the annual report is:

•  materially inconsistent with the information in the audited fi nancial 
statements; or

•  apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our 
knowledge of the Society acquired in the course of performing our audit; or

• otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identifi ed any 
inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during the audit and the 
Directors’ statement that they consider the annual report is fair, balanced and 
understandable and whether the annual report appropriately discloses those 
matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider 
should have been disclosed. We confi rm that we have not identifi ed any such 
inconsistencies or misleading statements.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the Directors 
are responsible for the preparation of the fi nancial statements and for being 
satisfi ed that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and 
express an opinion on the fi nancial statements in accordance with applicable 
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 

This report is made solely to the Society’s members, as a body, in accordance 
with Section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Society’s members those matters we 
are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and / or those further matters 
we have expressly agreed to report to them on in our engagement letter and 
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Society and the Society’s 
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.
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Scope of the audit of the fi nancial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
fi nancial statements suffi cient to give reasonable assurance that the fi nancial 
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud 
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies 
are appropriate to the Society’s circumstances and have been consistently 
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of signifi cant accounting 
estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the fi nancial 
statements. In addition, we read all the fi nancial and non-fi nancial information in 
the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited fi nancial 
statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect 
based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Elanor Gill FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading, United Kingdom
8 April 2016
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Technical Account-Long Term Business Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premium written 18,906 14,235
Outward reinsurance premiums (122) (52)

3 18,784 14,183
Investment income 4 11,309 4,185
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 4 (6,079) 5,486

Total Technical Income 24,014 23,854

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid: Gross amount (25,792) (13,734)
Reinsurers’ share  51 -

(25,741) (13,734)
Change in provision for claims: Gross amount 399 (1,016)
Net claims incurred 5 (25,342) (14,750)

Long term business provision
Gross amount 5,385 (4,650)
Reinsurers’ share (14) (1)

6 5,371 (4,651)
Other Expenditure
Net operating expenses 7 (2,765) (3,205)
Amortisation of PVIF 11 (210) (70)
Investment expenses and charges 4 (471) (236)
Taxation attributable to long-term business 9  36 0

(3,410) (3,511)

Total Technical Charges (23,381) (22,912)

Surplus of technical income over technical charges 633 942

Transfer from/(to) Non-Technical Account 565 602
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 19 (1,198) (1,427)
Transfer from/(to) Unit-Linked Technical Provisions - (117)
Balance on Technical Account  -  - 

Technical Account-General Business
Technical Income 
Gross premium written 2,172 2,111
Investment income 110 90
Total Technical Income 2,282 2,201

Technical charges
Claims incurred gross (2,006) (1,976)
Transferred to general business provision (128) (86)
Net operating expenses 7 (148) (139)
Total Technical Charges (2,282) (2,201)

Balance on Technical Account  -  - 

Consolidated and Society Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2015

All long term business is written in the United Kingdom, is in respect of continuing operations and relates to direct insurance contracts. General business is written by the Guernsey branch 
and is classifi ed as overseas business. The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.

Financial statements
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Non-Technical Account Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Income
Investment income 10 6,419 5,600
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 10 3,988 4,543
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 10 183 301
Discretionary fund donations and levies 268 43
Total Income 10,858 10,487

Expenditure
Net operating expenses 7 (1,840) (1,772)
Court operating expenses 7 (3,169) (3,300)
Investment expenses and charges 10 (492) (358)
Discretionary benefi ts paid and approved Court distributions (1,027) (871)
Total Expenditure (6,528) (6,301)

Excess/(Defi cit) of income over expenditure for the fi nancial year 4,330 4,186

From/(to) Discretionary Fund 17 (5,375) (3,780)
From/(to) Long Term Business Technical Account (565) (602)
From/(to) Mainland Court funds 18 (910) (730)
From/(to) Court funds – Guernsey 18 53 (54)
From/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 19 2,467 980

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - -

Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (Technical Account) 1,198 1,427
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (Non-Technical Account) (2,467) (980)
Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss) (76) (146)
Other Comprehensive Income (1,345) 301

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated and Society’s Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Non-Technical Account Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Income
Investment income 10 6,608 5,597
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 10 3,978 4,208
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 10 183 301
Discretionary fund donations and levies 268 43
Total Income 11,037 10,149

Expenditure
Net operating expenses (1,653) (1,591)
Court operating expenses 7 (3,169) (3,300)
Investment expenses and charges 10 (492) (358)
Discretionary benefi ts paid and approved Court distributions (1,030) (871)
Total Expenditure (6,344) (6,120)

Excess/(Defi cit) of income over expenditure for the fi nancial year 4,693 4,029

(To)/from Discretionary Fund 17 (5,354) (3,511)
(To)/from Long Term Business Technical Account (565) (602)
(To)/from mainland Court funds 18 (1,294) (842)
(To)/from Court funds – Guernsey 18 53 (54)
(To)/from Fund for Future Appropriations 19 2,467 980

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - -

Society Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Assets Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 11 1,120 1,330

Investments
Land and buildings 12 63,686 58,620
Investment in subsidiary 13 10 10
Other fi nancial investments 13 130,650 140,338

194,346 198,968

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - investment contracts 13  2,078  2,249 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - insurance contracts 13 31,027 30,620

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision                    20 390 404

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 487 732
Other debtors 14 914 2,112

1,401 2,844
Other assets
Tangible assets 15 170 196
Certifi cates of deposit 2,636 7,101
Cash at bank and in hand 28,124 18,574

30,930 25,871
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,249 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 16 376 415
Other prepayments and accrued income 295 148

1,920 1,899

Pension asset 23 430 382

Total assets 263,642 264,567

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.

42

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   42 20/04/2016   09:29



Financial statements

Liabilities Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds 17 11,993 6,618
Court Funds 18 75,316 74,459

87,309 81,077

Fund for future appropriations 19 41,201 42,470

Technical provisions
Long term business provision - Insurance and participating investment contracts 20 94,439 100,058
Long term business provision - non-participating investment contracts 20 12 16
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts 20 2,078 2,233
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 20 31,027 30,620
Claims outstanding 20 1,904 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 20 3,270 3,142

132,730 138,372

Provision for other risks and charges      22  - 76

Creditors
Other creditors 639 843
Taxation and Social Security 74 67

713 910

Accruals and deferred income 1,689 1,662

Total Liabilities 263,642 264,567

Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Assets Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 11 1,120 1,330

Investments
Land and buildings 12 56,682 51,514
Investment in subsidiary 13 10 10
Other fi nancial investments 13 131,411 141,618

188,103 193,142

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - investment contracts 13  2,078  2,249 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - insurance contracts 13  31,027 30,620

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision 20  390 404

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 487 732
Other debtors 14 881 1,952

1,368 2,684
Other assets
Tangible assets 15 170 196
Certifi cates of deposit  1,699 2,200
Cash at bank and in hand 19,118 12,644

20,987 15,040
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,095 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 16 376 415
Other prepayments and accrued income 234 147

1,705 1,898

Pension asset 23 430 382

Total assets 247,208 247,749

Society Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.

44

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   44 20/04/2016   09:29



Financial statements

Society Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2015

Liabilities Notes 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds 17 2,579 (2,775)
Court Funds 18 68,318 67,077

70,897 64,302

Fund for future appropriations 19 41,201 42,470

Technical provisions
Long term business provision - Insurance and participating investment contracts 20 94,439 100,058
Long term business provision - non-participating investment contracts 20 12 16
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts 20 2,078 2,233
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 20 31,027 30,620
Claims outstanding 20 1,904 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 20  3,270 3,142

132,730 138,372

Provision for other risks and charges 22 - 76

Creditors
Other creditors 639 819
Taxation and Social Security 74 67

 713 886

Accruals and deferred income 1,667 1,643

Total liabilities 247,208 247,749

The notes on pages 46 to 86 form an integral part of these accounts.

These fi nancial statements were approved by the Board on 8 April 2016 and authorised for issue. No amendments are permitted after authorisation for issue. On behalf of the Board:

Mike Wilkinson
Chairman

 Paul Osborn
 Chief Executive

 Lisa Russell 
 Company Secretary
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

General Information and basis of accounting

The Society is a Friendly Society incorporated in the United Kingdom under the 
Friendly Societies Act. The address of the registered offi ce is give on page 2. 
The nature of the Group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the 
strategic report on pages 8 to 19.

The Society prepares its Annual Report & Accounts on the historical cost 
convention modifi ed for fair value, excluding tangible fi xed assets, in accordance 
with The Friendly Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions) Regulations 1994, 
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 and Financial Reporting Standards 102 and 103 
(FRS 102 and FRS 103).

The prior year fi nancial statements were restated for material adjustments on 
adoption of FRS 102 and FRS 103 in the current year. For more information, see 
note 29.

The functional currency of the Society continues to be pounds sterling because 
that is that currency of the primary economic environment in which the Society 
operates. The consolidated fi nancial statements are also presented in 
pounds sterling.

The Society meets the defi nition of a qualifying entity under FRS 102 and 
has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available to it in 
respect of its separate fi nancial statements, which are presented alongside the 
consolidated fi nancial statements. Exemptions have been taken in relation to 
fi nancial instruments, presentation of a cash fl ow statement and remuneration of 
key management personnel.

Under FRS 103 the accounting treatment of long-term business contracts 
depends on the classifi cation of contracts as either insurance contracts if the 
level of insurance risk is signifi cant or investment contracts if the risk is 
not signifi cant.

The Society considers insurance risk to be the risk of having to pay benefi ts as a 
result of an insured event which are signifi cantly more than would be paid if the 
insured event did not occur. All of the Society’s non-profi t policies and regular 
premium unit-linked policies are classifi ed as insurance contracts. The Society 
accounts for all contracts with no signifi cant insurance risk in accordance with 
section 11 and 12 of FRS 102.

All of the Society’s with-profi t policies are classifi ed as participating investment 
contracts as these entitle the policyholder to receive, in addition to the 
guaranteed benefi ts, additional discretionary bonuses which  are likely to form 
a signifi cant proportion of the total benefi t payable and where the amount and 
timing are at the discretion of the Society and depend on the performance of a 
specifi ed pool of assets.

The Society’s single premium unit-linked contract (which is no longer offered for 
sale) is classifi ed as an investment contract.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated income and expenditure accounts, the consolidated statement 
of other comprehensive income and the consolidated balance sheet are the 
fi nancial statements of the whole Group including the branches (Courts) and the 
Investment Associations (see note 2) where the Society has the ability to exercise 
control. Internal transactions and balances between the various components of 
the Society have been eliminated.

The consolidated fi nancial statements incorporate the results of acquisitions 
using the acquisition method. In the balance sheet, the acquiree’s identifi able 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially recognised at their fair 
values at the acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are included 
in the consolidated income and expenditure accounts from the date on which 
control is obtained. They are deconsolidated from the date control ceases. In the 
case of the acquisition of policy engagements and related assets and liabilities, 
the acquisition method is applied as if the engagements acquired constituted 
an entity.

The Court assets are not available to back the long-term business of the Society 
but the Courts remain as branches of the incorporated Society. Their assets 
and activities are therefore shown separately within the notes to the accounts. 
Investment Association deposits are investments of the Courts.

Going Concern

The Society’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its 
future development, performance and position are set out in the Strategic Review 
on pages 8 to 19. Note 25 also describes the fi nancial position of the Society; its 
cash fl ows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities; the Society’s objectives, 
policies and processes for managing its capital; its fi nancial risk management 
objectives; details of its fi nancial instruments and hedging activities; and its 
exposure to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Society meets its day to day working capital requirements through its own 
cash reserves. The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Society 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in 
preparing the annual fi nancial statements.

Premium Income

For insurance contracts and participating investment contracts, regular premium 
income is accounted for on a receivable basis, single premium income is 
accounted for when received. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for 
in accordance with the contract terms when due, refl ecting the period when risk 
is transferred.

Claims

Maturity claims are charged to the Income and Expenditure account when due 
for payment. Surrenders are accounted for on maturity or, if earlier, on the date 
when the policy ceases to be included within the calculation of the long-term 
business provision. Death claims are accounted for when notifi ed. Claims on 
with-profi t business include bonuses payable. Claims payable include related 
claims handling costs. Amounts receivable from reinsurers are estimated in a 
manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions or the settled claims 
associated with the reinsured policies and in accordance with the relevant 
reinsurance contract.
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Long-Term Business Provision

The long-term business provision is determined by the Board on the advice of 
the Actuarial Function Holder as part of the annual actuarial valuation of the 
Society’s long-term business. The provision is initially determined in accordance 
with the requirements of the Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers. In accordance 
with normal insurance practice, certain reserves required for the statutory 
valuation returns are not required to be included in these accounts that are 
designed to present a true and fair view. This adjusted basis is referred to as the 
modifi ed statutory solvency basis.

This makes suffi cient provision for future expenses of fulfi lling the long-term 
contracts and includes a provision for existing reversionary bonuses and current 
reversionary bonuses declared as a result of the valuation. Future reversionary 
bonuses are implicitly provided for by use of valuation rates of interest below 
those expected. No provision is made for terminal bonuses, which can be varied 
at any time depending on investment conditions.

The long-term business provision also includes actuarially calculated liabilities in 
respect of Group business. These liabilities are calculated using historic Society 
experience and include reserves for claims which have incurred but not reported, 
a reserve for unexpired risks and a reserve for claims already in payment.

Further details of these technical provisions are contained in note 20.

General Business Provision

General Business comprises the medical and medical services insurance 
protection conducted by Guernsey branch.  The liabilities are calculated in 
accordance with local regulatory requirements and on a consistent basis with 
FRS 103 and made up of an unearned premium reserve, the estimated cost 
of claims incurred but not reported, an unexpired risk reserve plus an 
appropriate margin.

Fund for Future Appropriations

The fund for future appropriations consists of funds that have not been allocated 
to specifi c policyholders or non-insurance funds. Transfers to and from the fund 
refl ect the excess or defi ciency of income over outgoings in each accounting 
period arising from participating business. The fund for future appropriations 
represents membership funds, working capital and the value of discretionary 
future bonuses to policyholders.

Deferred Acquisition Costs

The costs associated with acquiring new insurance contracts are deferred to the 
extent that they are recoverable out of margins contained in future premiums. 
Such costs are disclosed as an asset on the balance sheet. Deferred acquisition 
costs are amortised over the term the policies are written.

Taxation

Friendly Societies are taxed on their life or endowment business so far as the 
annual premiums or sums assured exceed limits prescribed in tax law, and on 
certain investment returns referable to their subsidiaries. Insofar as the Society’s 
business is taxed, it is taxed on investment return less management expenses.

Provision for current and deferred taxation is calculated using the tax law and 
rates as enacted or substantively at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they reduce deferred 
tax liabilities or it is probable there will be future taxable profi ts against which 
they may be set.

Land and Buildings

Land and Buildings, which include properties that are held by the Society for 
operational purposes, are freehold and leasehold investment properties held for 
long term rental yields and capital growth. Changes in fair value are accounted 
for as unrealised gains or losses in the Income and Expenditure account.

Land and buildings, other than those held by the Society for operational 
purposes, are valued at least annually on an open market value basis by 
qualifi ed external professional valuers. Land and buildings held for operational 
purposes are valued at least annually on an existing use value basis by qualifi ed 
external professional valuers.

Land and buildings occupied by the Society are required to be depreciated over 
their expected useful economic lives under the requirements of the Friendly 
Societies Act 1992. In respect of investment properties, this requirement 
confl icts with the generally accepted accounting principle set out in section 16 
of FRS 102 for Investment Properties, that no depreciation should be provided 
on such investments. The Board consider that, as these properties are held for 
investment, to depreciate them would not give a true and fair view, and that it is 
necessary to adopt FRS 102 in order to give a true and fair view. Depreciation is 
only one of the factors refl ected in the annual valuations, and the amount which 
might otherwise have been shown, cannot reasonably be separately identifi ed 
or quantifi ed. 

Freehold land is not subject to depreciation. No depreciation is charged on 
freehold buildings as, in the Directors’ opinion; it is considered that their 
estimated useful economic lives and residual values are such that the required 
depreciation charge is immaterial.

Investments

Other fi nancial investments comprise listed investments, units in authorised 
unit trusts, loans, mortgages, deposits with credit institutions and deposits 
with investment associations. Listed investments and units held in authorised 
unit trusts are measured at their bid value at the balance sheet date. Amounts 
receivable in respect of loans and mortgages are shown at the lower of the 
amounts advanced or the amount expected to be recovered where there is 
evidence of impairment. Deposits with credit institutions are carried at their 
historical cost as no reliable fair value can be obtained for these instruments. 
Investment associations are shown at cost plus interest accrued on the deposit. 
The Society does not invest in derivative investments and has no directly held 
investments that are denominated in a foreign currency.

In the Society balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries and associates are 
measured at cost less impairment.

Investment Income and Expenses

Investment income includes dividends, property rent, interest, together with 
realised gains and losses on investments less their related expenses. Dividends 
are taken into account when declared. Interest on fi xed interest securities, 
deposits and rental income is recognised on an accruals basis.
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1. Accounting policies - continued 

Gains and Losses on Investments

Balance Sheet
Unrealised gains and losses represent the difference between the market 
value of investments held at the end of the year and their market value at the 
beginning of the year, or their cost when acquired during the year.

Income and Expenditure Account
Realised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between purchase costs 
and net sales proceeds. An adjustment is made to unrealised gains and losses 
previously recognised for the impact of any disposals in the year. Realised and 
unrealised gains and losses are taken to the Income and Expenditure Account.

Pension Schemes

The Society operates a group stakeholder personal pension scheme covering 
most permanent employees. This is a defi ned contribution scheme and the 
Society’s contributions are charged to the Income and Expenditure account in the 
year to which they relate. The Society has no liability in respect of this defi ned 
contribution scheme other than future contractual contributions.

The Society also operates two defi ned benefi t pension schemes, both of which 
are closed to new members. Both schemes are administered by Trustees and are 
independent of the Society’s fi nances.

The asset or liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defi ned 
benefi t plans is the present value of the defi ned benefi t obligation at the 
reporting date less the fair value of the plan assets at the reporting date. The 
defi ned benefi t obligation is calculated using actuarial projections. Annually the 
Society engages independent actuaries to calculate the obligation.

The fair value of plan assets is measured in accordance with the FRS 102 fair 
value hierarchy and in accordance with the Society’s policy for similarly held 
assets. This includes the use of appropriate valuation techniques.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in 
actuarial assumptions are included in the Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income. Losses. These amounts together with the return on plan assets, less 
amounts included in net interest are disclosed in note 23 as the “Change in 
recognised defi ned benefi t asset”.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net 
balance of the defi ned benefi t obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This 
cost is recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Further details of the pension schemes are contained in note 23.

Operating Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the technical and non-
technical accounts on a straight-line basis inline with the accruals concept over 
the lease term.

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Tangible fi xed assets are valued at cost less depreciation or provision for 
impairment. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fi xed assets in equal annual 
instalments over their estimated useful economic lives based on cost, less 
estimated residual value. The principal rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Fixture and fi ttings - 4 to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 to 5 years

Residual value represents the estimated amount which would currently be 
obtained from disposal of an asset, after deducting estimated costs of disposal, if 
the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its 
useful economic life.

Cash Flow Statement

The Society, being a mutual life assurance company, is exempt from the 
requirement under FRS 102 to produce a cash fl ow statement.

Unit-Linked Business

Assets held in respect of unit-linked business are fair valued on a daily basis at 
bid price, using market prices supplied by third party data providers. The prices 
derived from the valuation apply to the next working day after the valuation point.

The provision for unit-linked business is equal to the value of the assets to which 
the contracts are linked. This provision is included within the long-term business 
provision.

Purchased Value of In-force Business (‘PVIF’)

On acquisition of a portfolio of insurance contracts, the net present value of 
the Society’s interest in the expected cash fl ows of the in-force business is 
capitalised as an intangible asset. The relevant element is that part of PVIF which 
will be recognised as profi t over the remaining lifetime of the in-force policies.

PVIF is amortised over the remaining anticipated lives of the related contracts 
which is generally between 5 and 15 years. Amortisation is recognised within net 
operating expenses in the Income and Expenditure account.

The carrying value of PVIF is assessed for possible impairment on an annual basis.

Notes to the Accounts - continued
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are recognised when the Society 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All fi nancial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price 
(including transaction costs). If an arrangement constitutes a fi nancing 
transaction, the fi nancial asset or fi nancial liability is measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar 
debt instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when and only 
when there exists a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts 
and the Society intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when and only when a) the contractual rights 
to the cash fl ows from the fi nancial asset expire or are settled, b) the Society 
transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the fi nancial asset, or c) the Society, despite having retained some signifi cant 
risks and rewards of ownership, has transferred control of the asset to another 
party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety 
to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and 
without needing to impose additional restrictions on the transfer.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only when the obligation specifi ed in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Key Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of these Financial Statements requires the Society to make 
certain estimates and assumptions that have an impact on the application of 
the policies and the amounts reported in the Financial Statements. Estimates 
and judgements are evaluated based on historical experiences and expected 
outcomes and are believed to be reasonable at the time such estimates 
and judgements are made, although actual experience may vary from these 
estimates. The estimates and assumptions which have the most signifi cant 
bearing on the carrying value of assets or liabilities are explained below:

1. Basis of Consolidation 

The Society has a number of branches (‘Courts’) as well as one subsidiary 
entity, Foresters General Insurance Services Limited. The Society also has a 
number of Court fund deposits invested in organisations known as ‘Investment 
Associations’. The Society is in a position where it can exert control over The 
Leeds District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Association. At 31 
December 2014, the Society also had control over The Sheffi eld and Hallamshire 
District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Associations, which was 
dissolved on 10 February 2015. 

The third Investment Association, The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters Investment 
Association, states within its rules that the members of the association consist 
of those individuals who are members of depositing Courts, and not the Courts 
themselves. There are members of the Derby Investment Association who are 
not members of the depositing Courts. The ownership of the association and 
controlling voting rights therefore rest with those individual members and not the 
Courts. There are no future economic benefi ts accruing in the Derby Investment 
Association in respect of the Society. These consolidated fi nancial statements 
therefore only include the results of the Society, its Courts and the Leeds and 
Sheffi eld Investment Associations. Further information is contained within note 2 
to these fi nancial statements.

2. Classifi cation of Contracts

A key issue for the Society under FRS 103 is that a distinction is made between 
insurance contracts and investment contracts. The Society issues contracts 
that transfer insurance risk, fi nancial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those 
contracts that transfer signifi cant insurance risk. Such contracts may also 
transfer fi nancial risk. 

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer fi nancial risk with no 
signifi cant insurance risk.

For each product type within the Society’s portfolio, Management has reviewed 
the level of benefi ts under the contract to determine the appropriate contract 
classifi cation. All with-profi ts contracts have been classifi ed as participating 
contracts as these contracts entitle the holder to receive, as a supplement 
to guaranteed benefi ts, additional benefi ts or bonuses that are likely to be a 
signifi cant portion of the total contractual benefi ts whose amount or timing is 
contractually at the discretion of the Society.

As a result of this review, one product, the POIS unit-linked MoneyBond Fund, 
has been classifi ed as an Investment Contract. The prior year results for the year 
ended 31 December 2014 have been restated in respect of this product. Further 
details are provided in note 29 to these fi nancial statements.
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1. Accounting policies - continued 

3. Technical Provisions - Valuation of investment and long-term 
insurance contract liabilities

Technical provisions are calculated using policy data held on the Society’s 
administration systems and assumptions set using internal and external data 
as inputs to actuarial valuation models. The assessment of the appropriate 
carrying value of the technical provisions requires the Society to make signifi cant 
judgements when determining the underlying assumptions. The principal 
economic assumption is the valuation interest rate, while the principal non-
economic assumption is the allowance for future expenses. The assumptions 
used for mortality, morbidity and longevity are based on standard industry or 
reinsurers’ tables, adjusted where appropriate to refl ect the Society’s own 
experience. The assumptions used for investment returns, expenses, lapse and 
surrender rates are based on current market yields, product characteristics, and 
relevant claims experience. The assumptions used for valuation interest rates 
are based on current market rates, adjusted for the Society’s own risk exposure. 
Due to the long-term nature of these obligations, the estimates are subject to 
signifi cant uncertainty. Further details on specifi c assumptions are provided in 
note 20 to these Financial Statements.

4. Valuation of Investment Properties

The Society owns a portfolio of Investment Properties which are held for 
long-term rental yield and capital growth. This portfolio is valued on an open 
market basis on an annual basis by Society appointed Chartered Surveyors. 
The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation 
Standards on the basis of Market Value. In preparing these valuations, data and 
information available concerning rental yields, lease terms, voids and fl oor areas, 
and enquiries within local market places have been used as contributing factors 
to each individual property’s valuation. The most signifi cant inputs into this 
valuation approach are the rental income and yield assumptions. Further details 
are provided in note 12 to these fi nancial statements.

5. Valuation of Financial Assets

The Society holds a number of fi nancial assets as described in our investments 
accounting policy on page 47. The Society has no fi nancial assets held for 
trading, all investments are classifi ed and valued at fair value. Such assets are 
measured at market prices, or prices consistent with market ratings should no 
price be available. Any unrealised or realised gains or losses are taken to the 
appropriate Income and Expenditure Account as they occur. Further details are 
provided in note 13 to these fi nancial statements.

6. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Schemes

In determining the pension cost and the defi ned benefi t obligation of the 
Society’s defi ned benefi t pension schemes a number of assumptions are used. 
These assumptions include an appropriate discount rate, the levels of salary 
escalation, price infl ation and mortality rates. Further details are contained in 
note 23 to these Financial Statements. 

7. Intangible Assets - PVIF

The Society holds a PVIF asset in respect of the POIS acquisition in 2014 and 
assesses this intangible asset for signs of impairment on an annual basis. As 
part of this review process, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined 
using value in use calculations, which requires estimates of future cash fl ows 
and as such is subject to estimates and assumptions. The test for impairment of 
the PVIF involves a comparison of the portfolio movements over the accounting 
period with the assumptions made in the original PVIF calculation.  This includes 
analysis of the number and type of policies in-force, the nature and value of 
policy exits, the value of funds under management, the level of premium income 
and the costs of administering the business. Further details are contained in note 
11 to these Financial Statements.

Notes to the Accounts - continued
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2. Investment Associations
The Society had a number of Court fund deposits invested in organisations known as ‘Investment Associations’. These associations are all registered as Specially 
Authorised Societies under the Friendly Society Act. The associations have their own constitutions or rules and are governed by a Committee of Management that is 
independent to the Society’s Board of Directors. The objective of these associations is to receive deposits of registered friendly societies and their branches and to invest 
the same for their benefi t. All investment associations are unincorporated associations and are registered in England and Wales. In all cases they do not have issued share 
capital and their principal country of operation is Great Britain. The Society is currently in a position where it can exert control over The Leeds District of the Ancient Order 
of Foresters’ Investment Association. In 2014, the Society also controlled The Sheffi eld and Hallamshire District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Associations. 
In the event of a liquidation of these two associations, all fi nal proceeds will revert to the depositing Courts, and therefore back with the Society. Furthermore, the Society’s 
rules clearly allow for exercising control through their ability to ask Courts to withdraw their deposits in these associations. These two associations have been consolidated 
using the equity accounting method in line with the requirements of FRS 102. The Sheffi eld & Hallamshire District of the Ancient Order of Foresters Investment 
Associations was legally dissolved on 10 February 2015 with all fi nal proceeds returned to the depositing Courts in proportion to their deposited values.

The Investment Association deposits are investments of the Court and Discretionary funds and consequently have no impact on the insurance results shown in the 
Technical Account.

At a specially arranged Extraordinary General Meeting on 27th January 2010, the Court depositors of the Sheffi eld & Hallamshire District of the Ancient Order of Foresters 
Investment Associations voted to dissolve the Association. Professional advisers were appointed by the Association’s Committee of Management to support the Committee 
through the dissolution process. As at 31 December 2015, the dissolution process has been completed.  

The third Investment Association, The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters Investment Association, states within its rules that the members of the association consist of those 
individuals who are members of depositing Courts, and not the Courts themselves. The ownership of the association and controlling voting rights rest with those individual 
members and not the Courts. Deposits by Courts in The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters Investment Association are shown at the deposit value (cost), which represents 
cash invested along with cumulative interest and bonuses paid. At 31 December 2015 these deposits totalled £3,448,175 (2014: £3,287,443) as shown in note 13, Other 
Financial Investments. 

2015 2014

Financial information for the year ended 31 December 2015 Profi t/(loss) 
for the year

£’000

Total 
Assets
£’000

Profi t/(loss) 
for the year

£’000

Total 
Assets
£’000 

The Leeds District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Association (221)  16,433 153 16,656
The Sheffi eld & Hallamshire District of the Ancient Order of 
Foresters Investment Associations

- - 4 162
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3. Earned Premiums-Long Term Business

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Gross premiums written 18,906 14,235
Outward reinsurance premiums (122) (52)
Net earned premiums 18,784 14,183

Gross premiums written:
Unit-linked Premium Income
Investment and savings - Regular premiums 5,264 1,330

Non-linked Premium Income
Life cover business - regular premiums 4,187 3,449
Pensions business - regular premiums 68 77
Investment and savings - single premiums 2,911 3,519
Industrial business - regular premiums 59 104
Group business - regular premiums 6,417 5,756

18,906 14,235

The above includes premiums in respect of participating business 6,648 6,657

Gross new business premiums (APE)
Life cover business – regular premiums  343  301 
Group business – regular premiums  48  877 
Investment and savings – single premiums  291  352 
Investment and savings – regular premiums  897  167 

1,579 1,697

Annual premium equivalent (APE) measures sales as the value of regular premiums plus 10% of any new single premiums written during the year. 

Single premiums relate to products issued by the Society which allow for one premium only or allow for recurrent single premiums. Regular premiums contractually allow 
for payments on a regular basis and have been annualised in the gross new business premiums. 

The breakdown of earned premiums set out above for regular premiums are estimated using the brought forward and carried forward in-force premiums at the year-end. 
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4. Investment Returns-Long Term Business

5. Claims Incurred-Long Term Business

6. Change In Technical Provisions-Long Term Business

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

a) Investment Income – Long Term Business
Income from property investments 628 543
Income from listed investments 4,497 2,847
Income from other investments 372 244
(Losses)/gains on the realisation of listed investments 5,812 551

11,309 4,185

b) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) from property investments  1,355 854
Unrealised gains/(losses) from investments (7,434) 4,691
Reversal of previously recognised unrealised losses - (59)

(6,079) 5,486

c) Investment Expenses and Charges – Long Term Business
Investment management expenses and charges 471 236

2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Gross claims payable 25,164 14,398
Cost of administration 178 352

25,342 14,750

2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Gross change in long term business provision                   (5,293) 2,899
Reinsurers share of long term business (14) 1
Gross change in technical provision for linked liabilities 236 970
Gross change in provision for bonuses (39) 179
Gross change in provision for pension annuity guarantee (261) 602

(5,371) 4,651

53

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   53 20/04/2016   09:29



Financial statements

Annual Report and Accounts 2015

7. Net operating expenses

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

a) Operating Expenses
Long Term business 2,765 3,205
PVIF Amortisation 210 70
General Business 148 139
Non Technical Account 1,840 1,772
Court Operating Expenses                           3,169 3,300

8,132 8,486

Total operating expenses for the year amount to £8.1m (2014:£8.5m).

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

b) Long Term Business
Acquisition costs 1,173 1,403
Change in deferred acquisition costs (40) 32
Administrative expenses 1,632 1,840

2,765 3,275
Acquisition costs include commissions paid of £463,425 (2014: £359,596). 

c) Non-Technical Account and Court Operating Expenses 

Non-Technical Account expenses of £1,840,000 (2014: £1,772,000) consist of the allocation of central expenses which are not directly related to individual 
insurance funds or Courts. They represent the indirect costs of running the business of the Society and include strategy and project costs such as Solvency II. 
Court Operating expenses of £3,169,000 (2014:£3,300,000) include both the allocated expenses from Head Offi ce and the directly borne expenses. 

Transfers between the Technical and Non-Technical Accounts refl ect the allocation of monies received or paid in respect of insurance and other business activities, 
including any fi nancial support provided to the insurance business.

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

d) Net operating expenses includes:
Fees payable to the Society’s auditor for the audit of the annual accounts 100 110
Other services supplied pursuant to legislation – PRA Returns 23 30
Total audit fees 123 140
Audit related services - 25
Other non-audit fees - 11
Total fees paid to Deloitte LLP (2014: BDO LLP) 123 176

Expenses in respect of the POIS acquisition - 591
Depreciation on tangible fi xed assets 64 74
Operating lease rental charges 9 13

e) Operating leases
Annual commitments under operating leases for motor vehicles which expire between one and fi ve years                       9 13
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8. Staff costs

9. Taxation

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

a) Employees
i) Staff Costs
Wages and salaries 2,209 2,268
Social security costs 240 233
Other pension costs 178 170

2,627 2,671

Number Number
ii) Average number of persons employed:
Board and Senior Management 9 8
Administration and other 46 43
Area Co-ordinators 12 12

67 63

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

b) Board emoluments
Remuneration (including benefi ts in kind) 319 452
Compensation for loss of offi ce - 140
Pension scheme contributions (money purchase) 15 26
Total 334 618

Full details of directors’ emoluments are contained in the Directors Remuneration report on pages 31-32.

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Surplus of technical income over technical charges  633 942
Taxation on Technical Surplus at standard UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2014: 20%) 127 188

Effects of:
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised (87) (188)
Release of deferred taxation held in respect of pension scheme assets (note 22) (76) -
Consolidated total tax charge/(credit) for the period (36) -

There was no current tax charge in either 2015 or 2014 due to the losses the Society is carrying forward. At 31 December 2015, these losses stood at £4,848,719 
(2014: £5,457,000) in respect of excess management expenses. As at 31 December 2015 there are realised capital losses carried forward of £2,277,080 (2014: 
£1,423,000) which can be relieved against unrealised gains of £138,711 (2014: £550,000). These losses are available to be used against future profi ts of the Society.

A deferred tax credit of £76,000 (2014: NIL) has been recognised in the income and expenditure account in respect of the release of deferred taxation liabilities in 
respect of the Society’s two defi ned benefi t pension schemes. 
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10. Non-technical investment returns

a) Investment Income
2015 2014

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Income from property investments 2,627 2,384 2,585 2,393
Income from listed investments 1,022 815 1,282 1,080
Income from other investments 343 114 89 207
Gains/(losses) on the realisation of listed investments 1,052 1,052 720 720
Gains/(losses) on the realisation of property investments 326 331 3 (3)
Income from property investments - Courts 103 103 118 118
Gains/(losses) on realisation of investments – Courts 202 202 (43) (43)
Income from mainland Court investments 181 1,044 309 588
Other income – Courts 563 563 537 537

6,419 6,608 5,600 5,597

b) Unrealised (losses)/gains on Investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments  5,474  5,464 4,476 4,141
Reversal of previously recognised unrealised (gains)/losses on listed investments     (805) (805) (482) (482)
Reversal of previously recognised unrealised (gains)/losses on property investments (681) (681) 549 549

3,988 3,978 4,543 4,208

c) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court Investments
Unrealised gains on court investments 183 183 301 301

d) Investment Management Expenses and Charges
Investment expenses and charges 492 492 358 358
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11. Intangible assets

2015 2014
Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

PVIF PVIF
Cost
At 1 January 1,400 1,400 - -
Additions - - 1,400 1,400
At 31 December 1,400 1,400 1,400 1,400

Amortisation
At 1 January (70) (70) - -
Charged during the period (210) (210) (70) (70)
At 31 December (280) (280) (70) (70)

Net Book Value
31 December 2015 1,120 1,120
31 December 2014 1,330 1,330

On acquisition of the POIS portfolio of insurance contracts on 26 September 2014, the net present value of the Society’s interest in the expected cash fl ows of the in-force 
business was capitalised as an intangible asset as shown above known as the Purchased Value of In-force Business (PVIF).

PVIF is amortised over the remaining anticipated lives of the related contracts which is between 5 and 15 years. Amortisation is recognised within net operating expenses 
in the Income and Expenditure account. 
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12. Land and buildings 

All investment properties, except the Court and Investment Association properties, were valued by Aston Rose Chartered Surveyors as at 30 November 2015 in accordance 
with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ guidelines on the basis of Market Value, taking into account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants. The 
properties have then been indexed in value to 31 December 2015 in line with the IPD Index. The property occupied by the Society, Foresters House and the property 
occupied in Tunstall were valued at the same date by Aston Rose Chartered Surveyors on an Existing Use Value basis. No allowance has been made for the costs of 
realisation. Court and Investment Association properties have been valued by a number of different professional independent valuers on a Market Value basis as at 31 
December 2015, taking into account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants. Property costs have been restated as at 1 January 2003 at the value at the 
Society’s Incorporation. 

In order for these accounts to show a true and fair view it is appropriate not to provide depreciation on land and buildings as it is considered that their useful economic 
lives and residual values are such that their depreciation is immaterial. 

Group
Freehold

£’000

Long 
Leasehold

£’000

Occupied by 
Society

£’000

Court 
Properties

£’000

Total

£’000
Market Value
At 1 January 2015 43,900 2,160 1,260 11,300 58,620
Additions           3,589 - - - 3,589
Disposals (5,740) - - (789) (6,529)
Revaluation 7,709 96 5 196 8,006

At 31 December 2015 49,458 2,256 1,265 10,707 63,686

Society
Freehold

£’000

Long 
Leasehold

£’000

Occupied by 
Society

£’000

Court 
Properties

£’000

Total

£’000
Market Value
At 1 January 2015  43,900 2,160 1,260 4,194 51,514
Additions 3,589 - - - 3,589
Disposals (5,740) - - (664) (6,404)
Revaluation 7,709 96 5 173 7,983

At 31 December 2015 49,458 2,256 1,265 3,703 56,682
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13. Other fi nancial investments

Listed investments were valued at their bid value at 31 December 2015. Mortgages and other investments are included at their book cost. Investment Association 
investments were valued at market value by the Associations professional advisors. The balance sheet also includes the cost of £10,000 for all the shares in Foresters 
General Insurance Services Limited, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom. In view of the immaterial amounts involved, it has not been consolidated. 

All debtors are due within 1 year.

2015 2014
Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

At Market Value
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 46,577 39,340 48,829 42,702
Debt securities and other fi xed income securities 79,327 78,304 86,670 85,881
Investments listed on UK recognised investment exchange                              125,904 117,644 135,499 128,583
Loans secured by mortgages 144 124 253 215
Other investments  117  117 161 161
Deposits in Investment Associations 3,448 12,489 3,287 11,772
Court held other investments-mainland 11 11 265 14
Court held other investments-Guernsey  1,026  1,026 873 873
Other fi nancial investments 130,650 131,411 140,338 141,618
Assets held to cover linked liabilities (see below) 33,105 33,105 32,869 32,869

163,755 164,516 173,207 174,487

2015 2014
Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Analysis of assets held to cover linked liabilities
Debt securities and other fi xed income securities                 2,450 2,450 2,635 2,635
Shares and other variable yield securities and units in unit trusts 29,934 29,934 30,200 30,200
Other investments 721 721 34 34

33,105 33,105 32,869 32,869

14. Other debtors

2015 2014
Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Trade debtors 365 285 867 698
Other debtors including taxation recoverable 549 596 1,245 1,254

914 881 2,112 1,952
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15. Tangible fi xed assets (Group and Society)

Fixtures & 
Fittings

£’000

Total

£’000

Cost
As at 1 January 2015 1,910 1,910
Additions 43 43
Disposals (884) (884)
As at 31 December 2015  1,069  1,069 

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2015 1,714  1,714 
Charge for the year 64 64
Disposals (879) (879)
As at 31 December 2015  899  899 

Net Book Value
31 December 2015 170 170
31 December 2014  196  196 

Prior Year Information:
Motor 

Vehicles
£’000

Fixtures & 
Fittings

£’000

Total

£’000

Cost
As at 1 January 2014 41 1,744 1,785
Additions - 166 166
Disposals (11) - (11)
As at 31 December 2014 30 1,910 1,940

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 25 1,645 1,670
Charge for the year 5 69 74
Disposals (30) - (30)
As at 31 December 2014 - 1,714 1,714

Net Book Value
31 December 2014    - 196 196
31 December 2013 16 99 115
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16. Deferred acquisition costs (Group and Society)

17. Discretionary funds

2015 
£’000

2014
£’000

Deferred Acquisition Costs 376 415

The fi gure of £376,000 (2014: £415,000) on the balance sheet represents the Zillmer asset as at 31 December 2015. This is an adjustment to the net premium 
reserve which spreads acquisition costs over the lifetime of the policy. This fi gure has been added back to the long term business provision, grossing up the long 
term business provision by adding back the deferred acquisition costs, with the equivalent amount held as the DAC asset. There were no recoverable deferred 
acquisition costs in the margin in the policy premiums, these having been fully used to off-set future expense provisions. 

2015 2014
Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

At 1 January 6,618 (2,775) 2,838 (6,286)
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account 5,375 5,354 3,780 3,511
At 31 December 11,993 2,579 6,618 (2,775)

These funds are comprised as follows:
Court Reserve Fund 11,221 1,808 5,866 (3,527)
Convalescent Home Benefi t Fund 30 30 42 42
Foresters Child Support Fund 394 394 401 401
Foresters Lifeboat Fund 4 4 3 3
150th Anniversary Educational Awards Fund 189 188 213 213
Foresters Support Fund 90 90 13 13
Police Benevolent Fund 21 21 29 29
Subsidiary Benefi t Funds 44 44 51 51
At 31 December 11,993 2,579 6,618 (2,775)

The Discretionary funds are those funds with specifi c purposes as determined by the Society. In the Society’s balance sheet in 2014 the Court Reserve Fund (CRF) had a 
negative balance mainly due to reductions in property valuations but, on consolidation, is offset by the surplus in the Leeds Investment Association.
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18. Court funds

19. Fund for future appropriations (Group and Society)

Group
Mainland 

Courts
£’000

Guernsey 
Court
£’000

Total

£’000

At 1 January 2015 73,885 574 74,459
Transfer from non-technical account 910 (53) 857
At 31 December 2015 74,795 521 75,316

Society
At 1 January 2015 66,503 574 67,077
Transfer from non-technical account 1,294 (53) 1,241
At 31 December 2015 67,797 521 68,318

2015 
£’000

2014
£’000

At 1 January 42,470 31,747
Transfer from/(to) technical account 1,198 1,427
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account (2,467) (1,038)
Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss) - (88)
POIS FFA at 26 September 2014 - 10,422
At 31 December 41,201 42,470

The Fund for Future Appropriations (‘FFA’) stands at £41.2m (2014: £42.5m) and represents the estimated surplus in the funds that has not been allocated and is available 
to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements. A signifi cant part of the FFA belongs to the with-profi t policyholders, with the main constituent of the FFA outside the 
with-profi t funds is from the Group Capital Fund (‘GCF’). 
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20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society) 

The above Long Term Business provision includes current bonuses of £688,846 (2014: £727,365) and pension annuity guarantees of £1,325,572 (2014: £1,586,950).

i.  Premiums received are calculated as net premiums for business calculated on a net premium reserving basis and gross premiums for business calculated on gross 
premium reserving basis. 

ii. Interest expected on a reserving basis. 

(a) Introduction

The Long Term Business Provision primarily consists of the actuarially calculated liabilities of the following funds:

• Order Insurance Fund (OIF) - an open with-profi ts fund

•  Non-Profi t Fund (NPF) – an open non-profi t fund mainly selling unit-linked business

• Group Business Fund (GBF) - an open non-profi t fund selling Group and PHI business

• Group Capital Fund (GCF) – a fund that supports the capital requirements of the Society

• POIS Fund (POIS) – a closed with-profi ts fund

• Tunstall Fund (TF) – a closed with-profi ts fund

• Sick and Death Fund (S&D) – a closed non-profi t fund

• Pure Endowment Fund (PEF) – a closed with-profi ts fund

•  Leek Fund (LF) – a closed with-profi ts fund 

The General Business provision is held to meet future payments in respect of medical and medical services insurance protection business conducted by the Court in 
Guernsey. This is classifi ed as general overseas business and is shown separately in the Technical Account.

The provision for outstanding claims consists of all claims notifi ed to the Society by 31 December 2015 but not yet paid.

Long Term 
Business 
Provision

£’000

Technical 
Provision 

for Linked 
Liabilities

£’000

General 
Business 
Provision

£’000

Outstanding 
Claims

£’000

Total

£’000

At 1 January 2015 100,058  32,869 3,142 2,303 138,372
Premiums received (i) 11,972 4,943 - - 16,915
Liabilities paid on exits (17,721) (5,895) - - (23,616)
Interest (ii) 1,102 - - - 1,102
New business 1,268 321 - - 1,589
Assumption changes:
- Valuation interest rate (1,062) - - - (1,062)
- Infl ation (151) - - - (151)
- Expenses 220 - - - 220
- Other (1,221) 867 128 - (226)
Change in provision for outstanding claims - - - (399) (399)
Reassurers’ share of the change in technical provisions (14) - - - (14)

94,451 33,105 3,270 1,904 132,730
Amounts ceded to reinsurers 390 - - - 390
At 31 December 2015 94,841 33,105 3,270 1,904 133,120
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20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society) – continued

(b) Types of insurance contracts 

The main types of insurance contracts that the Society currently has in force are savings, life assurance and income protection contracts. The Order Insurance Fund is 
open to with-profi ts savings and life assurance business and the main products currently offered are as follows:  

Product name Description

Guaranteed Savings Plan A long-term regular savings plan with a guaranteed cash sum at the end of the chosen term and the potential for bonuses 
to increase the policy value.

Tax Exempt Savings Plan A long-term regular tax exempt savings plan with a guaranteed tax-free cash sum at the end of the chosen term and the 
potential for bonuses to increase the policy value.

With-profi t (Stocks & Shares) ISA A fl exible medium to long-term tax-free savings plan which can accept regular investments or one-off lump sum 
investments up to the maximum annual ISA limit. There is the potential for bonuses to increase the policy value. 

Bond A single lump sum investment with the potential for bonuses to be added over the medium to long term. 

50+ Life Cover A with-profi t whole of life insurance policy for the over 50s, providing a guaranteed tax-free cash sum on death which has 
the potential to grow with bonuses over time. The monthly premiums are fi xed at outset and guaranteed not to change. 

Product name Description

Tax Exempt Savings Plan A long-term regular tax exempt savings plan of which the premium is used to allocate units in the POIS Flexible Growth 
Fund. The fund invests in a range of investments such as gilts, corporate bonds and equities, both UK and overseas, for the 
potential of long-term growth.

Savings & Investment Plan A long-term regular savings plan of which the premium is used to allocate units in the POIS Savings Fund. The fund invests 
mainly in UK stocks and shares for a potential for growth over the longer term. 

Product name Description

Group Life & Sickness Schemes These are set up by employers to provide life assurance, critical illness and/or income protection benefi ts for employees. 
The employees have the option of joining the scheme and paying the appropriate premiums for the selected benefi ts. 
A range of different benefi t types is available and these are tailored to the individual scheme.

The Non-Profi t Fund is open to unit-linked savings business and the main products currently offered are as follows: 

The Group Business Fund is open to non-profi t business for group schemes and the main products are as follows:  

No new business (other than increments to existing policies) is written in the other funds of the Society.  
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31 December 2015
%

31 December 2014
%

OIF With-profi ts contracts (taxable) 1.65 1.50
OIF With-profi ts contracts (non-taxable) 1.90 1.75
PEF With-profi ts and Non-profi t contracts 1.90 1.80
S&D Non-profi t contracts 1.45 1.50
Tunstall With-profi ts (non-taxable) contracts – Industrial branch 1.65 1.50
Tunstall With-profi ts (non-taxable) contracts – Ordinary branch 1.90 1.75
Tunstall With-profi ts (taxable) contracts 1.10 1.00
Leek Industrial and Ordinary branch contracts 1.55 1.15
POIS With-profi ts contracts (taxable) 0.70 0.50
POIS With-profi ts contracts (non-taxable) 0.95 0.75
NPF Non-profi t contracts (taxable) 1.35 1.25
NPF Non-profi t contracts (non-taxable) 1.70 1.50

(c) Method used for calculating technical provisions 

The liability for insurance contracts is calculated on the basis of recognised actuarial methods having due regard to actuarial principles and best practice. The 
methodology takes into account risks and uncertainties of the business written.

Calculations are generally made on an individual policy basis, although for Group schemes the reserves are set at a portfolio level allowing for the mix of different schemes 
(by size and benefi t type).  

For the with-profi ts business, the liabilities are calculated on the regulatory basis as the funds size is signifi cantly below the £500m level the PRA has determined should 
be applied for calculating liabilities under the realistic reporting methodology.  

The liabilities for the conventional with-profi t business are calculated using a net premium valuation basis, for accumulating with-profi t business a bonus reserve method 
is used.  

The liabilities for the individual sickness policies are calculated using the inception annuity method on a gross premium basis, which values the expected future claim 
payments from the valuation date to the end of each policy term.  

The liabilities for the Group business are calculated using historic Society experience and consist of  

•  IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) reserves to allow for claims which have already occurred but have not been notifi ed to us,

• a reserve for unexpired risk to allow for the deferred period on sick pay and disability claims, and  

• a reserve for all periodic claims already in payment.  

The liabilities for the general business written in Guernsey are calculated in accordance with local regulatory requirements made up of the unearned premium reserve, an 
IBNR reserve, an unexpired risk reserve plus an appropriate margin.  

The liabilities for protection business are calculated using a gross premium basis.  

For unit-linked business, the liabilities are made up of the unit liability together with a non-linked element. The liability in respect of the linked business is at least as much 
as the amount of surrender value.  

The unit-linked policies with a guaranteed return are valued using closed-form solutions (Black-Scholes). All other liabilities that include provisions for options and 
guarantees are valued on a deterministic basis as if the guarantee is taken up.  

(d) Assumptions used for calculating technical provisions  

Economic assumptions are the same as those used for reporting to the PRA under the regulatory peak. The principal assumption is the valuation interest rate which has 
generally increased in line with the average market value yield on the backing assets.  

The valuation interest rates used to calculate the main classes of policy liabilities are as follows:  
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20. Technical Provisions (Group and Society) – continued
Non-economic assumptions are based on standard tables adjusted where necessary to take into account the Society’s own experience. Where appropriate tables are 
not available, industry experience is used on a conservative basis to calculate provisions. The principal assumptions are mortality, morbidity and persistency although the 
relative sensitivity will depend on the class of long-term business.  

Experience investigations for mortality, morbidity and persistency are performed on a regular basis. Where industry analysis indicate that changes in expected future 
mortality, morbidity or other specifi c circumstances mean that claim costs are likely to rise in future, then this is taken into account in the valuation. No benefi t is taken 
where industry analysis indicates that future trends are likely to reduce claim costs in future. Assumptions are generally intended to be a prudent estimate of 
future experience.  

The key insurance assumptions used to calculate the liabilities are as follows: 

The main change to the valuation assumptions has been the interest rate change which has resulted in lower policy liabilities by approximately £1.1m (2014: higher policy 
liabilities by approximately £2.45m). Other valuation assumption changes have not been signifi cant.  

Mortality tables used

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

OIF With-profi ts 
Males 90% A67/70Ult 90% A67/70Ult

Females
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)

NPF unit-linked contracts Males & Females 52% AMC00+52% AFC00 52% AMC00+52% AFC00

PEF With-profi ts 
Males 90% A67/70Ult 90% A67/70Ult

Females
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)

Tunstall Industrial business Males & Females ELTM 14 ELTM 14

Tunstall Ordinary business
Males 90% A67/70Ult 90% A67/70Ult

Females
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)

Leek Industrial business Males & Females ELT14M ELT14M

Leek Ordinary business Males & Females AM80 AM80

S&D Non profi t contracts 
Males 90% A67/70Ult 90% A67/70Ult

Females
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)
100% A67/70Ult 

(minus 4 years to actual age)

POIS/NPF all contracts except whole life non-profi t 
contracts

Males 100% AM80 100% AM80

Females 100% AF80 100% AF80

POIS/NPF whole life non-profi t contracts
Males 150% AMC00 150% AMC00

Females 150% AFC00 150% AFC00
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With-profi t 
funds
£’000

Non-participating 
funds
£’000

Group Capital 
Fund
£’000

Total

£’000
At 31 December 2015
Qualifying capital
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) 24,662 8,215 8,324 41,201
Regulatory adjustments – assets (390) - (2,096) (2,486)
Regulatory adjustments – liabilities 390 - (1,437) (1,047)
Total available capital resources 24,662 8,215 4,791 37,668
Capital requirement (11,875)
Overall surplus capital 25,793

Analysis of policyholders’ liabilities
With-profi ts 78,163 - - 78,163
Non-participating - 5,917 10,371 16,288
Unit-linked - 33,105 - 33,105
Claims outstanding 1,226 493 185 1,904

79,389 39,515 10,556 129,460

With-profi t 
funds
£’000

Non-participating 
funds
£’000

Group Capital 
Fund
£’000

Total

£’000
At 31 December 2014
Qualifying capital
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) 24,328 6,532 11,610 42,470
Regulatory adjustments – assets (404) - (2,249) (2,653)
Regulatory adjustments – liabilities 404 - (1,707) (1,303)
Total available capital resources 24,328 6,532 7,654 38,514
Capital requirement (11,526)
Overall surplus capital 26,988

Analysis of policyholders’ liabilities
With-profi ts 83,192 - - 83,192
Non-participating - 7,089 9,374 16,463
Unit-linked -  32,869 - 32,869
Claims outstanding  1,356 763 184 2,303

84,548 40,721 9,558 134,827

21. Capital statement (Group and Society) 
The Capital Statement in respect of the Society’s Life insurance business is set out below. The statement shows the analysis of the available capital resources calculated 
on a regulatory basis, the total regulatory capital requirements and the overall surplus capital over regulatory requirements. In addition the statement provides an analysis 
of policyholders’ liabilities.

 

The prior year fi gures were as follows:
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21. Capital statement (Group and Society) - continued

a) Summary 

As shown on the table on the previous page, the total available capital resources of the Society’s insurance operations amount to £37.7m (2014: £38.5m), its regulatory 
capital requirements amount to £11.9m (2014: £11.5m) resulting in a surplus of available capital over regulatory capital of £25.8m (2014: £27.0m). 

Apart from the capital employed by the Society’s insurance operations, the Society also has capital in funds known as Court Funds and Discretionary Benefi t Funds. These 
funds are not available to support the long term insurance business activities of the Society.

It is the Board’s intention to ensure that there is adequate capital to exceed the regulatory requirements of the Society’s insurance business, to meet any net new business 
strain and to meet any additional capital requirements of the Own Solvency and Risk Assessment.

(b) Basis for calculating available capital resources 

The available capital has been determined in accordance with PRA regulations and includes the Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA). The FFA represents the estimated 
surplus in the funds that has not been allocated and is available to meet the regulatory and other solvency requirements. 

Adjustments have been made to restate all assets and liabilities onto a regulatory basis and allowance has been made in the technical provisions for Guarantees and 
Options which are features of life assurance that confer potentially valuable benefi ts to policyholders. The Society maintains two types of guarantees in the with-profi ts 
funds: Maturity Guarantees and Guaranteed Annuity Options (GAOs). Maturity Guarantees are in respect of conventional with-profi ts business and represent the sum 
assured and reversionary bonuses declared to date. GAO’s apply to some personal pensions on retirement but are not considered material and are largely matched with 
suitable assets with no material risk to market or interest rate changes. 

(c) Basis of calculating capital requirements 

The Society must hold suffi cient capital to meet its regulatory requirements. 

The total insurance regulatory requirements of the Society amount to £11.9m (2014: £11.5m) made up of the Long Term Insurance Capital Requirement (LTICR) of £7.8m 
(2014: £8.1m) and the Resilience Capital Requirements (RCR) of £4.1m (2014: £3.4m). The RCR is the additional capital required when a prescribed set of stress tests 
as set by the PRA are applied simultaneously to the value of the assets and liabilities. In particular, for the Society this involves the following three tests as at 
31 December 2015: 

• a fall in property prices of 20% (2014: 20%), 

• a fall in equity of 10% (2014: 10%), and 

• the more onerous of an increase or decrease of 0.49% (2014: 0.44%) on fi xed interest yields.

(d ) Restrictions on available capital resources 

The Society is required to hold suffi cient capital to meet the PRA’s minimum capital requirements. Account is also taken of the Individual Capital Assessment (ICA), which 
considers certain business risks not covered by the statutory basis. 

In general, as the Society is a mutual, all surplus belongs to members. As a result of the exercise to clarify the fund structures that took effect from 1 January 2012, each 
insurance fund has its own capital. The assets for each of the with-profi t funds have been ring-fenced which means that the associated assets are for the benefi t of the 
with-profi t policyholders of the various funds and cannot be used to support other areas of the business except in exceptional circumstances. 

The Group Capital Fund constituent of the FFA is available to support all other funds in respect of regulatory and other commitments as the Board shall decide after taking 
advice from the Actuarial Function Holder. The reduction from £11.6m in 2014 to £8.3m in 2015 is primarily due to the expenses borne by the Group Capital Fund from 
new business, non-insurance and project costs, offset by a decrease in the technical provisions for guaranteed annuity options.

Full details of these restrictions are publicly available within the Society’s Principles and Practices of Financial Management. 
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The available capital is sensitive to changes in market conditions, due to both changes in the value of the assets and the effect any change in investment conditions would 
have on the basis for calculating policy liabilities. The capital position is also sensitive to assumptions and actual experience relating to investment returns, mortality, 
expenses and policy lapse rates. The mix of assets is kept under review taking into account the level of capital required and the anticipated returns for members. 

In accordance with FRS 102, the Society is required to disclose that it has an unbooked deferred tax asset of £1,549,000 (2014: £1,200,000) using a deferred taxation 
rate of 20% (2014: 20%). No deferred tax asset has been booked, due to the uncertainty over when the losses will be utilised. 

(e) Movement in available capital

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Total available capital at 1 January 38,514 28,760
Change in long term business assets (6,448) 72,341
Change in non-insurance liabilities 386 (208)
Change in insurance liabilities 5,215 (62,379)
Total available capital at 31 December 37,667 38,514

Deferred Taxation 2015
£’000

Restated 2014
£’000

Movements in provision
At 1 January 76 76
Charge/(credit) in technical account (76) -
At 31 December - 76

Asset not provided for
Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains on Investments (316) (109)
Acquisition costs (264) (231)
Excess management expenses carried forward (969) (860)
Deferred tax asset not recognised in the balance sheet (1,549) (1,200)

22. Provisions for other risks and charges (Group and Society) 
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23. Pension schemes

a) Defi ned contribution scheme 

The Society operates a defi ned contribution group stakeholder pension scheme: The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Group Stakeholder Pension Plan (FGSPP) 
for all employees joining the Society after 2003. The majority of current staff are members of the scheme and contribute to it. The Society contributes 10% of salaries of all 
contributing staff into the scheme. The contributions made by the Society amounted to £161,056 (2014: £143,434). The funds of the scheme are administered by a third 
party and are independent of the Society’s fi nances. The Society has no liability in respect of this defi ned contribution scheme other than future contractual contributions.

(b) Defi ned benefi t schemes 

The Society operates two defi ned benefi t schemes: The Ancient Order of Foresters 1978 Retirement & Death Benefi t Scheme (the AOF scheme) and The Tunstall 
and District Assurance Collecting Society Staff Superannuation Fund Scheme (the Tunstall scheme). The funds of the schemes are administered by trustees and are 
independent of the Society’s fi nances. Contributions are paid to the scheme in accordance with the recommendations of an independent actuarial adviser. 

Both defi ned benefi t schemes are closed to new entrants. The AOF scheme has 2 (2014: 3) active members, 26 (2014: 27) deferred members and 50 (2014: 49) 
pensioners (including 32 pensioners where an annuity has been purchased). The Tunstall scheme has 2 (2014: 2) active members, 11 (2014: 11) deferred members and 
14 (2014: 14) pensioners. As the schemes are closed to new entrants, the age profi le of the active members will tend to rise and under the projected unit method the 
current service cost will tend to increase with time.

The employer contributions amount to 0% (2014: 0%) in respect of the AOF scheme and 25.7% (2014: 22.1%) in respect of the Tunstall scheme. In total, employer 
contributions to the schemes amounted to £17,045 (2013: £16,434) and other costs amounted to £58,000 (2014: £75,000). 

Details in respect of the schemes are provided below in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102). A full triennial valuation of the AOF scheme was 
carried out at 6 April 2013 and of the Tunstall scheme at 31 December 2013. Following the triennial valuation of the AOF Scheme at 6 April 2013, the Trustees have 
agreed a proposal that an employer’s contribution holiday will be introduced in 2014 and applied until the next triennial valuation. There has therefore been no employer 
contributions to the AOF Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: nil employer contributions were made). A triennial valuation of the Tunstall Scheme as 
at 31 December 2013 has been undertaken in 2014.

The actuarial valuations of both schemes have been updated to the accounting date by an independent qualifi ed actuary. As required by FRS 102, the value of the defi ned 
benefi t liabilities have been measured using the projected unit credit method and both the assets and liabilities include the value of those pensions in payment that are 
secured with insured annuities.

Both schemes are in surplus.

(c) Assumptions for defi ned benefi t schemes 

The following table sets out the key FRS 102 assumptions used for the two schemes:

31 December
2015

%

31 December
2014

%

Discount rate 3.6 3.4
Retail price infl ation 2.8 2.9
Consumer price infl ation 1.9 2.0
Pension increases 0.0 to 3.0 0.0 to 3.0
Salary growth 2.9 3.0
Life expectancy of a current 65 year old (years) 21 to 23 yrs 21 to 23 yrs
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(d) AOF Scheme 

The split of assets in the AOF scheme has been as follows:

The net pension asset represents the amount of surplus available to the Society by way of possible reduced future contributions. 

Assets
31 December

2015
%

31 December
2014

%

Equities 49 43
Property 11  12 
Bonds 18  23 
Gilts 22  21 
Cash -  1 
Total % 100  100 

Balance Sheet position
31 December

2015
£’000

31 December
2014
£’000

Total fair value of assets  5,401 6,000
Present value of defi ned benefi t obligation (4,439) (5,173)
Surplus in scheme 962 827
Asset not recognised (728) (561)
Recognised defi ned benefi t asset 234 266

Analysis of change in assets:
2015

£’000
2014

£’000

Assets in scheme at 1 January 6,000  5,729 
Interest income 190  247 
Actual return on assets excluding interest income (96)  279 
Employer contributions  -  - 
Employee contributions 4  5 
Benefi ts paid (697) (260)
Assets in scheme at 31 December  5,401 6,000

Actual return on assets 94 526
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Analysis of change in defi ned benefi t obligation:
2015

£’000
2014
£’000

Liabilities in scheme at 1 January 5,173 4,843
Current service cost 37 58
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 162 209
Employee contributions 4 5
Remeasurement arising from changes in assumptions (210) 338
Remeasurement arising from experience (30) (20)
Benefi ts paid (697) (260)
Liabilities in scheme 4,439 5,173

Defi ned benefi t cost:
31 December

2015
£’000

31 December
2014

£’000

Current service cost and total operating charge 37 58
Net interest on the defi ned benefi t asset (9) (9)
Total recognised in Profi t or Loss 28 49
Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income 4 (78)
Defi ned benefi t cost 32 (29)

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
31 December

2015
£’000

31 December
2014

£’000

Remeasurement of defi ned benefi t obligation (240) 318
Actual return on assets excluding interest income 96 (279)
Change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts in net interest 148 (117)
Total recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 4 (78)

Change in recognised defi ned benefi t asset:
2015

£’000
2014
£’000

Recognised defi ned benefi t asset at 1 January 266 237
Defi ned benefi t cost (32) 29
Employer contributions  -  - 
Recognised defi ned benefi t asset 234 266

Change in effect of the asset ceiling:
2015

£’000
2014
£’000

Effect of asset ceiling at 1 January 561 649
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling 19 29
Change in effect of the asset ceiling excluding interest 148 (117)
Effect of asset ceiling 728 561

23. Pension schemes - continued
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31 December
2015

%

31 December
2014

%

Equities 49 49
Fixed Interest Gilts 25 25
Index Linked Gilts 25 25
Other 1 1
Total % 100 100

Balance Sheet position
31 December

2015
£’000

31 December
2014
£’000

Total fair value of assets  2,173 2,171
Present value of defi ned benefi t obligation (1,977) (2,055)
Surplus in scheme 196 116
Asset not recognised - -
Recognised defi ned benefi t asset 196 116

Analysis of change in assets:
2015

£’000
2014

£’000

Assets in scheme at 1 January 2,171 1,966
Interest income 73 85
Actual return on assets excluding interest income (9) 174
Employer contributions 17 16
Benefi ts paid (79) (70)
Assets in scheme 2,173 2,171

Actual return on assets 64 259

Analysis of change in defi ned benefi t obligation:
2015

£’000
2014

£’000

Liabilities in scheme at 1 January 2,055 1,673
Current service cost 21 18
Interest cost on scheme liabilities 69 72
Remeasurement arising from changes in assumptions (88) 187
Remeasurement arising from experience (1) 175
Benefi ts paid (79) (70)
Liabilities in scheme 1,977 2,055

(e) Tunstall Scheme 

The split of assets in the Tunstall scheme has been as follows:

The net pension asset represents the amount of surplus available to the Society by way of possible reduced future contributions. 
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Defi ned benefi t cost:
31 December 

2015
£’000

31 December
2014

£’000

Current service cost and total operating charge 21 18
Net interest on the defi ned benefi t asset 4 13
Total recognised in Profi t or Loss 25 31
Remeasurements in Other Comprehensive Income (80) 68
Defi ned benefi t cost (55) 99

Remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:
31 December 

2015
£’000

31 December
2014

£’000

Remeasurement of defi ned benefi t obligation (89) 362
Actual return on assets excluding interest income 9 (174)
Change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts in net interest - (120)
Total recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (80) 68

Change in recognised defi ned benefi t asset:
2015

£’000
2014
£’000

Recognised defi ned benefi t asset at 1 January 116 173
Defi ned benefi t cost (55) 99
Employer contributions  17  16 
Recognised defi ned benefi t asset at 31 December 78 288

Change in effect of the asset ceiling:
2015

£’000
2014
£’000

Effect of asset ceiling at 1 January - (120)
Interest on the effect of the asset ceiling - -
Change in effect of the asset ceiling excluding interest - 120
Effect of asset ceiling at 31 December - -

23. Pension schemes - continued

74

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   74 20/04/2016   09:29



Financial statements

2015
£’000

2014
£’000

Management fee to Orion Insurance Management Limited 138 137
Rent to Orion Insurance Management Limited 20 20

24. Related party disclosures

Control

The Society is controlled by its members, in particular through the Annual Meeting of delegates at the High Court.

Transactions

The Board, the Chief Executive or their immediate family held various policies on standard terms (including the right to bonuses where appropriate) throughout the year. 
The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Directors amounted to £954 (2014: £10,709) in respect of the Society’s products. The Court in Guernsey had 
the following transactions with Orion Insurance Management Limited, an insurance management company that is owned by members of the Court Committee 
of Management:

The Society has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by FRS 102 not to disclose transactions with members of the group headed by The Ancient Order of 
Foresters Friendly Society Limited on the grounds that those entities are controlled within that group, and the entities are included in consolidated fi nancial statements. 
The exemption only applies to wholly owned subsidiaries.         

25. Risk management 
The key risks that the Society are exposed to and the way the Society manages them is set out as follows: 

1) Insurance risk 

Insurance risk is the risk that arises from uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and timing of insurance liabilities. Long term insurance risk arises from mortality, 
morbidity, persistency and expense variances. Systems are in place to measure, monitor and mitigate exposure to all of these risks. 

The Society’s long term insurance liabilities and maturity profi le as at 31 December 2015 are as follows: 

Insurance liabilities at 
31 December 2015

Within 1 
year

£’000

1-5 
years
£’000

5-10 
years
£’000

Over 10 
years
£’000

Total

£’000
Long Term Business Provision 11,852 17,954 15,353 49,292 94,451
Technical provision for linked liabilities 82 538 1,082 31,403 33,105
Outstanding Claims 1,904 - - - 1,904
Total 13,838 18,492 16,435 80,695 129,460
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Assumptions
Change in reserves 

£'000
Impact on total 

reserves %

Reduction in valuation interest rate by 0.5% 3,864 3.2
Increase in mortality by 10% (148) (0.1)
Increase in claims inception by 10% 258 0.2
Decrease in claims recovery by 10% 378 0.3
Increase in expenses by 10% 2,328 1.9

Details of the assumptions used to calculate the long term business technical provisions are set out in Note 20. 

The impact on the policy reserves of sensitivities to key valuation assumptions are shown below: 

2) Financial risk 

The Society is exposed to a range of fi nancial risks through its fi nancial assets, fi nancial liabilities, reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. The most important 
components of this fi nancial risk are market risks which include equity price risk, property valuation risk, interest rate risk, currency exchange risk and credit spread risk. 
The Society also faces fi nancial risks in respect of counterparty default exposures. 

Each of the exposures to risk are analysed regularly to assess their likely impact and probability. The overall level of risk is assessed in the calculation of the Society’s 
Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR) under the new Solvency II regulations, which takes into account the correlation of individual risks. The Board is responsible for 
reviewing the risks faced by the Society and approving the required level of capital to be held against each risk element. 

3) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that as a result of market movements the Society may be exposed to fl uctuations in the value of its assets, the amount of its liabilities, or the income 
from its assets. Sources of general market risk include movements in interest rates, equity prices and property prices. 

The investment strategy is kept under regular review by the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee also monitors all investment activity on behalf of 
the Board.

a. Equity price risk 

Holdings in equities are by their nature subject to market movement. In order to mitigate this risk, the Society employs Quilter Cheviot as an external investment manager. 
In addition, the acceptable level of equity holdings for the Society’s With Profi t funds is governed by the Principles and Practices of Financial Management (PPFM) 
for each fund. 

As at 31 December 2015, the Society held £39.3m of individual equities in respect of non-linked liabilities. A 22% reduction in this value would lead to a 2% increase in 
the Solvency Capital Requirement on a Solvency II basis, before allowing for correlation, as with-profi t policy asset shares would absorb a signifi cant part of the reduction.

b. Property price risk 

As for equity, property holdings are by their nature subject to market movement. In order to mitigate this risk the Society employs Aston Rose to manage its portfolio of 
individual residential and commercial properties across the UK. 

As at 31 December 2015, the Society held £9.8m of property in respect of non-linked liabilities. A 25% reduction in this value would lead to a 1% increase in the Solvency 
Capital Requirement on a Solvency II basis, before allowing for correlation, as with-profi t policy asset shares would absorb a signifi cant part of the reduction. 

25. Risk management  - continued
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c. Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk exists for all assets and liabilities which are sensitive to changes in the term structure of interest rates or interest rate volatility. Due to the nature of the 
Society’s products, the long term business funds may be impacted by these interest rate movements.  

Asset-liability matching is performed to broadly match expected liability cash fl ows on a realistic basis in each fund. However, this can never be exact due to the 
uncertainties involved. A 0.5% reduction in interest rates would lead to a 1% increase in the Solvency Capital Requirement on a Solvency II basis, before allowing 
for correlation. 

d. Exchange rate risk

The Society has a number of directly held equity investments in foreign currencies in with-profi t and unit-linked funds which present a minor exchange rate risk. The 
Society’s holdings shown by currencies are listed below:

The large increase from 2014 to 2015 is due to the decision to move from sterling denominated collective holdings that invested in overseas equities into direct overseas 
equity holdings. 

Exchange rate risk is not hedged and so a change in the exchange rate will lead to a corresponding change in the value of assets. A 10% change in the exchange rate 
would be absorbed by with-profi t policy asset shares, or unit-linked fund prices so there would be no impact on the Society’s surplus capital. 

e. Credit spread risk 

Credit spread risk results from the sensitivity of the value of assets and liabilities to changes in the level or volatility of credit spreads over the risk-free interest rate 
term structure. 

The terms of the Society’s investment mandates require an appropriate spread of holdings within specifi ed parameters, with the majority of assets being ‘A’ rated bonds 
or higher. There are also limits on the maximum exposure to any single counterparty and on the level of exposure to lower rated bonds. This results in a relatively modest 
exposure to lower rated and hence more risky assets within the investment funds. The Society considers regular reviews from the fund manager so that the risk within the 
funds remains appropriate. 

 

Equity market values by currency
2015

£’000
2014

£’000

US Dollar 6,688 2,102
Euro 2,126 542
Swiss Franc 421 120
Swedish Krona 127 34
Danish Krona 82 20
Total 9,444 2,818

At 31 December 2015 the Society held £81.75m of listed fi xed interest securities which are analysed by credit rating below: 

Credit rating
2015

£’000

AAA 5,293
AA 53,426
A 13,024
BBB 4,822
Below BBB -
Not rated 5,185

81,750

No fi nancial assets are past due or impaired at the reporting date and management expects no signifi cant losses from non-performance by these counterparties. 
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29. Explanation of transition to FRS 102
This is the fi rst year that the Society has presented its fi nancial statements under Financial Reporting Standard 102 & 103 (FRS 102, FRS 103) issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council. The following disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last fi nancial statements under previously UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 
December 2014 and the date of transitions to FRS 102 and FRS 103 was therefore 1 January 2014. As a consequence of adopting FRS 102 and FRS 103, a number of 
accounting policies have changed to comply with that standard. Details of the changes applied and the restatement of the comparatives for the year ended 31 December 
2014 are presented below. 

4) Counterparty default risk 

Counterparty default risk is the risk of loss incurred by the Society if a counterparty fails to perform its contractual obligations, including failure to perform them in a timely 
manner. 

The Society’s exposures are mostly in respect of debtors, but also the £13.3m of cash balances held in respect of the long term insurance funds at 31 December 2015. 
The cash deposits are spread between Royal London Cash Management, its investment manager Quilter Cheviot and over a number of high street banks and 
building societies.   

The Society has a low level of exposure to reinsurers and this is declining with the maturity of the portfolios. There are not therefore any specifi c actions envisaged to 
manage reinsurer default risk. 

5) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is that of not having suffi cient liquid resources to meet changing market conditions and being unable to meet obligations as they fall due, or being able 
to secure them only at excessive cost. Liquidity is required to honour all cashfl ow commitments, both on and off balance sheet, and these are generally met through 
cashfl ows supplemented by assets readily convertible to cash.  

The management of liquidity is consistent with the economic capital, regulatory and operational needs across the Society. The Board is responsible for defi ning the 
risk appetite and monitoring liquidity risk exposure. Liquidity risk oversight is performed by the Investment Committee. The Investment Committee sets and monitors 
appropriate asset ranges bearing in mind the liquidity needs for each fund. 

27. Creditor payment policy
The Society’s policy is to settle creditors within the credit terms specifi ed, unless the transaction is subject to dispute. 

26. With-profi ts actuary and actuarial function holder
Mr Trevor Fannin of Willis Towers Watson held the Actuarial Function Holder and With-Profi ts Actuary roles throughout 2015.  In accordance with section 77 of the Friendly 
Societies Act 1992 the Society has requested Mr Fannin to provide certain particulars and they have confi rmed the following information: 

That neither Mr Fannin or his family were members of the Society throughout the year;  

Neither Mr Fannin, or his family, have any pecuniary interests in the Society; and 

The aggregate amount fees paid to Willis Towers Watson in 2015 were £196,000 (2014: £284,000) exclusive of Value Added Tax. 

28. Approval of fi nancial statements 
These fi nancial statements were approved by the Board on 8 April 2016. 

25. Risk management  - continued
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Consolidated & Society Technical 
Account – Long Term Business

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premium written 14,235 - - - 14,235
Outward reinsurance premiums (52) - - - (52)

14,183 - - - 14,183

Investment income 4,185 - - - 4,185
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 5,486 - - - 5,486
Transfer from non-technical funds    - - - - -
Total Technical Income 23,854 - - - 23,854

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid: Gross amount (13,770) - - 36 (13,734)
Reinsurers’ share - - - - -

(13,770) - - 36 (13,734)
Change in provision for claims: Gross amount (1,016) - - - (1,016)
Net claims incurred (14,786) - - 36 (14,750)

Long term business provision
Gross amount (4,614) - - (36) (4,650)
Reinsurers’ share (1) - - - (1)

(4,615) - - (36) (4,651)
Other Expenditure
Net operating expenses (3,275) - - - (3,275)
Investment expenses and charges (236) - - - (236)
Taxation attributable to Long Term Business - - - - -

(3,511) - - - (3,511)

Total Technical Charges (22,912) - - - (22,912)

Surplus of technical income over technical charges 942 - - - 942

Transfer from/(to) Non-Technical Account 602 - - - 602
Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations (1,427) - - - (1,427)
Transfer from/(to) Unit-Linked Technical Provisions (117) - - - (117)
Balance on Technical Account - - - - -

Explanation of adjustments made to the consolidated income and expenditure technical account for the year ended 31 December 2014 

Adjustment Description

1. Does not effect this statement. 

2. Does not effect this statement. 

3. FRS 103 requires claims in respect of investment contracts to be recognised as movements within the balance sheet rather 
than as part of the technical income and expenditure account. The claims incurred in the year ended 31 December 2014 in 
respect of investment contracts totalled £35,762.
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Adjustment Description

1. Net operating expenses have been reduced by £20,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the return on the 
Tunstall defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return which is 
more appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

2. Net operating expenses have been decreased by £78,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the return on the 
AOF defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return which is more 
appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

3. Does not effect this statement

Explanation of adjustments made to the consolidated income and expenditure non-technical account for the year ended 31 December 2014 

Consolidated Non-Technical Account 

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Income
Investment income 5,600 - - - 5,600
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 4,543 - - - 4,543
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 301 - - - 301
Discretionary fund donations and levies 43 - - - 43
Total Income 10,487 - - - 10,487

Expenditure
Net operating expenses (1,830) (20) 78 - (1,772)
Court operating expenses (3,300) - - - (3,300)
Investment expenses and charges (358) - - - (358)
Discretionary benefi ts paid and approved Court distributions (871) - - - (871)
Transfer to technical fund - - - - -
Total Expenditure (6,359) (20) 78 - (6,301)

Excess/(Defi cit) of income over expenditure 
for the fi nancial year 4,128 (20) 78 - 4,186

From/(to) Discretionary Fund (3,780) - - - (3,780)
From/(to) Long Term Business Technical Account (602) - - - (602)
From/(to) Mainland Court funds (730) - - - (730)
From/(to) Court funds – Guernsey (54) - - - (54)
From/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 1,038 20 (78) - 980

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - - - - -

29. Explanation of transition to FRS 102 - continued
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Society Non-Technical Account 

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Income
Investment income 5,597 - - - 5,597
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments 4,208 - - - 4,208
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments 301 - - - 301
Discretionary fund donations and levies 43 - - - 43
Total Income 10,149 - - - 10,149

Expenditure
Net operating expenses (1,649) (20) 78 - (1,591)
Court operating expenses (3,300) - - - (3,300)
Investment expenses and charges (358) - - - (358)
Discretionary benefi ts paid and approved Court distributions (871) - - - (871)
Transfer to technical fund - - - - -
Total Expenditure (6,178) (20) 78 - (6,120)

Excess/(Defi cit) of income over expenditure 
for the fi nancial year 3,971 (20) 78 - 4,029

From/(to) Discretionary Fund (3,511) - - - (3,511)
From/(to) Long Term Business Technical Account (602) - - - (602)
From/(to) Mainland Court funds (842) - - - (842)
From/(to) Court funds – Guernsey (54) - - - (54)
From/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 1,038 20 (78) - 980

Balance on the Non-Technical Account - - - - -

Explanation of adjustments made to the consolidated income and expenditure non-technical account for the year ended 31 December 2014 

Adjustment Description

1. Net operating expenses have been reduced by £20,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the return on the 
Tunstall defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return which is 
more appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

2. Net operating expenses have been decreased by £78,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the return on the 
AOF defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return which is more 
appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

3. Does not effect this statement
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Adjustment Description

1. Pension scheme actuarial gain/(loss) has been increased by £20,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the return 
on the Tunstall defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return 
which is more appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

2. Pension scheme actuarial gain/(loss) has been decreased by £78,000 due to restricting the rate used to calculate the 
return on the AOF defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets to the schemes’ discount rate, rather than using a rate of return 
which is more appropriate to the various classes of asset as required by FRS 102.

3. Does not effect this statement

Consolidated and Society’s Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 
(Technical Account) 1,427 - - - 1,427

Transfer from/(to) Fund for Future Appropriations 
(Non-Technical Account) (1,038) - - - (1,038)

Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss) (88) 20 (78) - (146)

Other comprehensive income 301 20 (78) - 243

Explanation of adjustments made to the Consolidated and Society’s Statement of Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2014

29. Explanation of transition to FRS 102 - continued
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Consolidated Balance Sheet - 
Assets

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 1,330 - - - 1,330

Investments
Land and buildings 58,620 - - - 58,620
Investment in subsidiary 10 - - - 10
Other fi nancial investments 140,338 - - - 140,338

198,968 - - - 198,968

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - 
investment contracts - - -  2,249  2,249 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - 
insurance contracts 32,869 - - (2,249) 30,620

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision                   404 - - - 404

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 732 - - - 732
Other debtors 2,112 - - - 2,112

2,844 - - - 2,844
Other assets
Tangible assets 196 - - - 196
Certifi cates of deposit 7,101 - - - 7,101
Cash at bank and in hand 18,574 - - - 18,574

25,871 - - - 25,871
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,336 - - - 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 415 - - - 415
Other prepayments and accrued income 148 - - - 148

1,899 - - - 1,899

Pension asset 306 23 53 - 382
Deferred tax asset - - - - -
Total assets 264,491 23 53 - 264,567
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Consolidated Balance Sheet - 
Liabilities

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds 6,618 - - - 6,618
Court Funds 74,459 - - - 74,459

81,077 - - - 81,077

Fund for future appropriations 42,470 - - 42,470

Technical provisions
Long term business provision 100,058 100,058
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts - - -  2,249 2,249
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 32,869 - - (2,249) 30,620
Claims outstanding 2,303 - - - 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,142 - - - 3,142

138,372 - - - 138,372

Provision for other risks and charges      - 23 53 76

Creditors
Other creditors including taxation and social security 910 - - - 910

Accruals and deferred income 1,662 - - - 1,662

Total Liabilities 264,491 23 53 - 264,567

Explanation of adjustments made to the Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2014 

Adjustment Description

1. FRS 102 requires deferred taxation in respect of defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets and liabilities to be separately 
identifi ed from the surplus/defi cit arising. £23,000 represents the deferred tax liability in respect of the Tunstall Scheme as 
at 31/12/2014.

2. FRS 102 requires deferred taxation in respect of defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets and liabilities to be separately 
identifi ed from the surplus/defi cit arising. £53,000 represents the deferred tax liability in respect of the AOF Scheme as at 
31/12/2014.

3. FRS 103 requires linked assets and liabilities in respect of investment contracts to be recognised separately within the 
balance sheet from those assets and liabilities relating to linked insurance contracts. At 31 December 2014, assets and 
corresponding technical provisions in respect of investment contracts totalled £2,249,490. 

29. Explanation of transition to FRS 102 - continued
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Society Balance Sheet – 
Assets

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Intangible assets
Purchased value of in force business 1,330 - - - 1,330

Investments
Land and buildings 51,514 - - - 51,514
Investment in subsidiary 10 - - - 10
Other fi nancial investments 141,618 - - - 141,618

193,142 - - - 193,142

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - investment 
contracts - - -  2,249  2,249 

Assets held to cover linked liabilities - insurance 
contracts 32,869 - - (2,249) 30,620

Reinsurers share of Long term business provision                   404 - - - 404

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations 732 - - - 732
Other debtors 1,952 - - - 1,952

2,684 - - -  2,684 
Other assets
Tangible assets 196 - - - 196
Certifi cates of deposit 2,200 - - - 2,200
Cash at bank and in hand 12,644 - - - 12,644

15,040 - - - 15,040
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent 1,336 - - - 1,336
Deferred acquisition costs 415 - - - 415
Other prepayments and accrued income 147 - - - 147

1,898 - - - 1,898

Pension asset 306 23 53 - 382
Deferred tax asset - - - - -
Total assets 247,673 23 53 - 247,749
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Society Balance Sheet - 
Liabilities

2014 as 
previously 

reported
£’000

Adjustment 
1

£’000

Adjustment 
2

£’000

Adjustment 
3

£’000

2014 Under 
FRS 102 & FRS 

103
£’000

Reserves
Discretionary Funds (2,775) - - - (2,775)
Court Funds 67,077 - - - 67,077

64,302 - - - 64,302

Fund for future appropriations 42,470 - - - 42,470

Technical provisions
Long term business provision 100,058 - - - 100,058
Technical provision for linked liabilities - investment contracts - - -  2,249 2,249
Technical provision for linked liabilities - insurance contracts 32,869 - - (2,249) 30,620
Claims outstanding 2,303 - - - 2,303
General business provision (Guernsey) 3,142 - - - 3,142

138,372 - - - 138,372

Provision for other risks and charges      - 23 53 - 76

Creditors
Other creditors including taxation and social security 886 - - - 886

Accruals and deferred income 1,643 - - - 1,643

Total Liabilities 247,673 23 53 - 247,749

Explanation of adjustments made to the Society Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 December 2014 

Adjustment Description

1. FRS 102 requires deferred taxation in respect of defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets and liabilities to be separately 
identifi ed from the surplus/defi cit arising. £23,000 represents the deferred tax liability in respect of the Tunstall Scheme as 
at 31/12/2014.

2. FRS 102 requires deferred taxation in respect of defi ned benefi t pension scheme assets and liabilities to be separately 
identifi ed from the surplus/defi cit arising. £53,000 represents the deferred tax liability in respect of the AOF Scheme as at 
31/12/2014.

3. FRS 103 requires linked assets and liabilities in respect of investment contracts to be recognised separately within the 
balance sheet from those assets and liabilities relating to linked insurance contracts. At 31 December 2014, assets and 
corresponding technical provisions in respect of investment contracts totalled £2,249,490. 

29. Explanation of transition to FRS 102 - continued

86

3052 Foresters Friendly Annual R&A 2015 Text_AW.indd   86 20/04/2016   09:29


